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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Masroor Ahmad Khan
(Chairman)

Haz Farooq Ahmad
(Chief Executive Ofcer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

Rabia Atique 

Muhammad Yahya

Haz Imran Lateef

Shiekh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited 

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Islami (Pakistan) Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metro Bank Limited

BANKERS

Haz Imran Lateef
(Chairman)

Rabia Atique

Haz Farooq Ahmad

Muhammad Yahya

HR&R and Compensation Committee 

Muhammad Nouman 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

M. Ashraf Bawany
(President)

Asim Mahmud
(Director Finance / CFO)

Farzand Ali
(GM Corporate / Company Secretary)

Syed Sibtul Hassan Gilani
(GM  Procurement & Imports)

Bilal Butt
(GM Sales & Marketing)

Abid Ameen
(Head of Plants)

Shiekh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan
(Chairman)

Masroor Ahmad Khan

Rabia Atique

Audit & Risk Management Committee 

BOARD COMMITTEES

MANAGEMENT TEAM



JS Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Soneri Bank Limtied

The Bank of Punjab

EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co.

Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Asif Mahmood Khan, Advocate

DSK Law Firm, Lahore.

SHARE REGISTRAR

Corplink (Private) Limited

Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial,

Model Town, Lahore-Pakistan.

Tell: 042-35916714

REGIONAL MARKETING OFFICE

C-7/A, Block F, Gulshan-e-Jamal

Rashid Minhas Road, Karachi.

Ph: 021-34572150

REGISTERED/CORPORATE OFFICE

10-N, Model Town Ext, Lahore.

UAN: 111 GHANI 1 (442-641)

Fax: (092) 042-35160393

E-mail: info.gases@ghaniglobal.com

Website: www.ghaniglobal.com

MANUFACTURING PLANTS

- Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki. 
  Distt. Kasur, Punjab.

 Eastern Industrial Zone, Port Qasim,-
  Karachi, Sindh.

 Hattar Special Economic Zone,-
  Distt. Haripur, KPK.

CREDIT RATING

Long term rating A 

Short term rating A1

(by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited)

SHARIAH ADVISOR (SUKUK)

Al Halal Shariah Advisors (Private) Limited 
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We are committed to quality, service, value and honesty, with dedication to provide the very best products 

and to serve the nation and health care particularly and greater community at large.

Our organization believes in faith, experience, innovation and growth, and will strive to strengthen all in 

our employees, customers and business peers.

We always seek to cultivate trust and reputation in all business relationships, both large and small.

VISION

MISSION
We strive achieve market leadership through technological edge, distinguished by quality and customer 

satisfaction, and emphasis on employee’s welfare and ensure adequate return to shareholders.

We further wish to contribute to the development of industry, healthcare, economy and country through 

harmonized endeavor.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As Corporate Citizen, We/GCIL!

Ensure that the business values and policies are aligned in such a way that it strikes a balance between 

improving and developing the wealth of business and contributing for betterment of society in an effective 

manner.

Endeavor to assume an even greater responsibility towards our society and stakeholders, including 

employees, their families and our business partners etc.

Believe that the Corporate Social Responsibility is primarily about conducting business in a transparent and 

ethical way that not only enhances value for all of our stakeholders but also supports the events that enhance 

the wellbeing of the community.

Ensure that corporate social responsibilities and guidelines for corporate governance are steps in the right 

direction. 

Support a clean environment and motivates its customers for this cause.

Try our level best that business activities of customer must be environment-friendly and not be

hazardous to that Society.

Endeavor that customer relation management is a strategic business philosophy and processes are rooted 

through ethical practices.
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Ghani Chemical Industries cares for the employees, customers and general public and is committed to providing a 

safe and injury free workplace.

 Complies strictly with all the SHEQ legislations and regulations,

 Involves all personnel in a system of shared responsibility for safe operation,

 Looks for continuous improvement in the workplace through the application of best safety & quality practices,   

Contributes to the permanent improvement of operational efciency and customers’ satisfaction through a

    risk management program to protect our people, assets and business viability.
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CUSTOMER’S SATISFACTION

High quality customer service is an integral part of GCIL’s philosophy. It is our constant endeavor to provide 

exclusive service with wider accessibility.

Customer First

Besides “Safety”, our corporate slogan is “Customer First”. We always lay emphasis upon providing in the 

best quality service to our customers. 

It is incumbent upon the company and the management to ensure safe delivery of product to customers and 

that all the employees, customers and visitors coming to the site(s), go back to their families in safe condition.

Our team of professionals are well-equipped and well-trained to provide the most efcient and personalized 

service to our customers.

All the safety programmes, in-house and at customer’s premises, have been installed to ensure continuity in 

programmes. 

A team of safety engineers is on board which ensures that all the safety aspects including human, machines, 

buildings, vehicles tankers and storage are met and taken care of.

We continuously develop and improve customer - service oriented culture within GCIL. Knowing our 

customers and their need is the key to our business success. 
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BRIEF HISTORY

MARCH 2014
nd Setup 2 110 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases at Port 

Qasim, Karachi.

JULY 2019
Transfer of entire manufacturing undertakings and business from Ghani Gases Limited to 
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, as a result of merger scheme approved by the 
Honourable Lahore High Court.

DECEMBER 2019
rdSetup 3  110 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases near Lahore.

AUGUST 2020
Signing of long term agreement with Attock Renery Limited for supply of Liquid Nitrogen for 
a period of 05 years.

NOVEMBER 2020
Signing of long term agreement with Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited for supply of 
Oxygen and Nitrogen gases for a period of 15 years.

MARCH 2022
Appreciation letter issued by National Command and Operation Center (NCOC) for 
contributions by the Company for the national effort against COVID-19.

JULY 2022
thSetup of 4  100 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Oxygen and Nitrogen gases at Port 

Qasim, Karachi.

OCTOBER 2022
Transfer of G3 Technologies Limited with and into Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, as a 
result of merger scheme approved by the Honourable Lahore High Court.

NOVEMBER 2022 Listing of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

OCTOBER 2010 ISO - 9001-2008 Certication

AUGUST 2015 ISO - 14001-2004 Certication

MAY 2009
st Setup 1 110 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases near Lahore.

MARCH 2021 FSSC 22000  Food Safety  System Certication

APRIL 2021 ISO 45001-2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certication

OCTOBER 2021 PS 4992:2010 Halal Certication
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CUSTOMER SEGMENTS

Oil & Gas
Light & Medium

Engineering Works

Chemical &
Fertilizer

Research and Analysis 

Ship Breaking &

Scrap Cutting
Environment 

Health Care Glass

Metal Fabrication Pulp & Paper

Steel & Iron Mills Livestock

Pharmaceutical Merchandise Market

Food & Beverage Reneries

GCIL! A Good solution for every situation...
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Liquid NitrogenLiquid Oxygen Liquid Argon Liquid Helium

Liquid CO2 Dissolve Acetylene

Industrial Gases Pipeline Industrial Cryogenic /

Gases Cylinders

Calcium Carbide

Ethylene Ripener 

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Pain Relief Mixture

HeliumCompressed Medical Oxygen

Liquid Medical Oxygen

Nitrous OxideLiquid Medical Cryogenic /

Gases Cylinders
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Oxygen Therapy Equipment Medical Gas Pipeline Gas Handling Equipment Gas Manifold

Compressed Air Compressed Argon Compressed Acetylene Compressed Nitrogen

Compressed Oxygen CO  Mixture2 High Purity Gases Lab Mixture Gas

Lamp Mixture Gas Argon Mixture Gas Co  Mig Wire2

Gas Outlet Points Aviation Oxygen Gas Regulator
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CORE VALUES

Sharia
Compliance

Custom
er

Satisfaction

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e

SHEQ

Professionalism

In
te

gr
ity
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We are! Where our customers are

GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

Sawat

Mardan

Hattar

Rawalpindi

Fateh Jang

Peshawar

Kasur

Chashma

Mianwali

Ternol

Sargodha

Abbottabad

Rahim yar khan 

Islamabad

Sadiqabad

Gujjarkhan

Queta 

Gujranwala

Chanda

Sheikhupura

Khosta

Sunder

Kashmor

Larkana

Sukkur

Multan

Karachi

Mehar

Qadir Pur

Kadan Wari

Lahore

Port Qasim

Hyderabad

Faisalabad

Rawalakot

Jehlum

Badin

Kadan Wari

Kohat

Meher

Nawabshah

Punjab Khyber P.K Sindh Baluchistan         Federal Area

Mianwali

Kohat

Kakar agency

Fateh Jang Rawalpindi Mardan
Hattar

Jehlum

Peshawar

Chashma
Kasur

Mianwali

Sargodha

Rahim Yaar Khan

Sadiqabad

Chanda
Quetta

Khosta

Kohat

Kashmor

Larkana

Bhit

Hub Gadani Karachi Port Qasim Badin

Hyderabad Kadan Wari

Qadir Pur

Lahore

Sundar

Sukkur Kakar Agency

Sheikhupura

Gujranwala

Gujar Khan

Islamabad

Abbotabad

Sangjani

Sialkot
Rawalakot

Meher
Multan Faisalabad

Nawab Shah

Sawat
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Manufacturing Plants: Punjab Sindh Khyber PK
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MEMBERSHIPS / CERTIFICATIONS

Certi�cations

ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System

ISO 14001: 2015  Environmental Management System

PS  4992: 2010  Halal Cer�fica�on

FSSC 22000  Food Safety System Cer�fica�on

Memberships

KCCI - Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry

LCCI - Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry

HCCI - Haripur Chamber of Commerce & Industry

BQATI - Bin Qasim Associa�on of Trade & Industry

PCMA - Pakistan Chemical Manufacturer Associa�on

ISO 45001:2018 Occupa�onal Health and Safety Management System
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Operating Perforamance

Sales 

Gross prot

Operating prot

Other income

Prot/ (loss) before tax 

Prot/ (loss) after tax

2023

Total Comprehensive Income

2022

4,781,791
 

1,746,672 

1,390,694 

211,830 

1,163,912 

812,426 

2,199,944

2021

4,350,558
             

1,657,115                

1,175,011                  

55,092                       

966,746          

691,149

691,149

         

         

 

 

2020

2,332,739
 

493,699 

97,129 

28,772 

(223,687)

(160,831)

(160,831)

(Rs. in '000')

2019

2,301,048
       

578,554          

189,193          

24,560            

(24,083)

(64,669)

(64,669)

5,111,123
 

1,459,838 

1,306,021 

330,935 

931,639 

507,891 

1,005,169

Balance Sheet

Share capital

Accumulated prots/reserves

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Right issue

Bonus issue

 4,347,163 
       

       

6,351,335
       

4,405,441
       

1,425,030

       

2,405,836

       

6.51%

120%

                 

1,535,250
             

1,377,161
       

4,198,105
             

1,792,056
             

1,344,090

             

1,733,585

             

33.5%

                 

-

                  

1,150,000
 

686,087

4,035,482
 

1,339,955
 

1,422,596

 

1,854,274

 

-

                  

-

                  

1,150,000
       

846,918

3,409,163
       

1,756,839
       

1,143,812

       

1,780,882

       

-

 

-

 

 5,001,879 
       

       

7,777,715
       

5,349,908
       

1,987,754

       

2,309,911

       

-

10%

                 

Restated

3,257,6263,828,079
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Earning per share (EPS) 2.26 2.28 

2.28 

(1.22)

(1.22)

(0.562)

(0.562)

1.06

EPS based on comprehensive income 5.062.10



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that 8th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (the Company) 
will be held on Saturday, October 28, 2023, at 11:30 AM, at registered ofce of the Company, at 10-N, Model Town 
Ext., Lahore, to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 
together with Directors' and Auditors ' Reports thereon.

1.       

In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 
2023, the nancial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the website of the Company which can be 
downloaded from the following weblink and QR enabled code:

Notes:

Corplink (Private) Limited
 Wings Arcade, 1 - K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore 54000, Pakistan

Ofce: +92 42 35916714, +92 42 35916719, +92 42 35869037 Email: shares@corplink.com.pk

Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration 
from Saturday, October 21, 2023 to Saturday, October 28, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at 
the ofce of the share registrar

1.       BOOK CLOSURE

Place:  Lahore  
Dated: October 05, 2023

                                                                                      By order of the Board

                                                                                                      FARZAND ALI

Company Secretary

2.       To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024 and to x their remuneration. The retiring 
auditors' M/S ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves 
for reappointment.

3.       Any other business with permission of the Chair.

at the close of business on Friday, October 20, 2023 will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance in the 
AGM.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote 
instead of him/her.

2.       ATTENDANCE OF MEETING

Proxies in order to be effective duly signed, lled and witnessed must be deposited at the Registered Ofce of the 
Company, along with the attested copies of valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or Passport, not less 
than 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 
issued by the SECP for attending the meeting.
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Full Name Cell Number
Registered

Email Address
CNIC Number

Company
Name

Folio/CDC No.

Attendance in the meeting shall be on production of original CNIC or passport. 

Keeping precautionary measures regarding COVID-19, the Company intends to convene this AGM with minimal 
physical interaction of shareholders while ensuring compliance with the quorum requirements and requests the 
members to consolidate their attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies and/or video link. 

The Company has made arrangements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders, can now participate 
in the AGM proceedings via video link. In order to attend the meeting through video link members are requested to 
share the below information at agmgcil23@ghaniglobal.com, for their appointment/registration and proxy 
verication by or before Saturday, October 21, 2023 as per below format. 

Video link details and login credentials will be shared with those members whose registered emails containing all 
the particulars are received on or before Saturday, October 21, 2023.

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email 
address agmgcil23@ghaniglobal.com. 

The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016- 639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised listed 
companies to adhere to provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 by replacing physical shares issued 
by them into book entry form.

3.       CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO THE BOOK ENTRY FORM

Members are requested to notify/submit the following information / documents, in case of book entry securities in 
CDS to their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company by quoting their 
folio numbers and name of the Company at the below mentioned address of the Company's Share Registrar, if not 
earlier notied/submitted: 

5.       CHANGE IN ADDRESS AND CNIC 

Change in their address, if any 

Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested to submit  the 
same along with folio numbers at earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar.

§

§

The Members of the Company having physical folios / share certicates are requested to convert their shares 
from physical form into book-entry form as soon as possible. The Members may contact their Broker, CDC 
Participant or CDC Investor Account Service Provider for assistance in opening a CDS Account and subsequent 
conversion of the physical shares into book-entry form. It would facilitate the Members in many ways including 
safe custody of shares, avoidance of formalities required for the issuance of duplicate shares, etc. For further 
information and assistance, the Members may contact our Share Registrar, M/s. Corplink (Private) Limited.

The audited nancial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 have been made available on 
Company's website  in addition to annual and quarterly nancial statements for the prior www.ghaniglobal.com
years.

4.       AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:

Notwithstanding the above, the Company will provide hard copies of the audited nancial statements, to any 
Member on their request, at their registered address, free of cost, within one (1) week of receiving such request.
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PATTERN OF THE SHARE HOLDING
as at June 30, 2023

FORM - 34

NUMBER OF
SHARES HELD

NO OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF SHARES

From To

1

101

501

1,001

5,001

10,001

15,001

20,001

25,001

30,001

35,001

40,001

45,001

50,001

55,001

60,001

65,001

70,001

75,001

80,001

85,001

90,001

95,001

100,001

105,001

110,001

115,001

120,001

125,001

130,001

135,001

145,001

155,001

160,001

165,001

170,001

175,001

180,001

185,001

190,001

195,001

200,001

210,001

225,001

230,001

100

500

1,000

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

55,000

60,000

65,000

70,000

75,000

80,000

85,000

90,000

95,000

100,000

105,000

110,000

115,000

120,000

125,000

130,000

135,000

140,000

150,000

160,000

165,000

170,000

175,000

180,000

185,000

190,000

195,000

200,000

205,000

215,000

230,000

235,000

1608

2369

820

1664

593

224

161

92

72

60

31

23

28

13

12

12

16

10

11

13

3

2

19

8

6

5

3

8

4

4

2

1

1

10

2

3

4

6

1

3

6

1

3

1

2

77,196

579,610

647,363

4,296,421

4,351,607

2,776,642

2,827,050

2,103,131

1,996,649

1,976,865

1,180,168

986,754

1,361,978

693,265

690,705

756,040

1,069,414

725,181

858,455

1,071,928

258,500

190,000

1,879,525

821,440

655,500

563,576

352,660

984,845

509,320

528,394

278,000

147,345

155,650

1,646,897

333,720

515,860

715,410

1,098,790

189,750

577,770

1,191,030

205,000

642,400

226,876

465,630
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235,001

240,001

245,001

250,001

255,001

260,001

285,001

295,001

305,001

310,001

320,001

325,001

335,001

340,001

360,001

365,001

375,001

380,001

415,001

420,001

445,001

450,001

495,001

515,001

520,001

555,001

570,001

590,001

620,001

695,001

715,001

725,001

815,001

895,001

960,001

985,001

995,001

1,015,001

1,055,001

1,205,001

1,215,001

1,305,001

1,535,001

2,125,001

2,445,001

2,495,001

2,545,001

2,705,001

3,295,001

5,275,001

5,995,001

11,100,001

86,520,001

276,605,001

240,000

245,000

250,000

255,000

260,000

265,000

290,000

300,000

310,000

315,000

325,000

330,000

340,000

345,000

365,000

370,000

380,000

385,000

420,000

425,000

450,000

455,000

500,000

520,000

525,000

560,000

575,000

595,000

625,000

700,000

720,000

730,000

820,000

900,000

965,000

990,000

1,000,000

1,020,000

1,060,000

1,210,000

1,220,000

1,310,000

1,540,000

2,130,000

2,450,000

2,500,000

2,550,000

2,710,000

3,300,000

5,280,000

6,000,000

11,105,000

86,525,000

276,610,000

2

1

4

2

3

4

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

478,340

241,910

1,000,000

503,140

777,926

1,048,148

285,085

300,000

305,350

314,000

320,490

330,000

336,820

342,500

363,000

369,765

380,000

384,350

418,500

424,380

450,000

450,350

999,400

517,575

523,380

558,965

1,145,350

594,000

621,000

700,000

718,500

1,458,800

815,265

900,000

964,109

986,960

1,000,000

1,020,000

1,056,000

2,420,000

1,218,470

1,308,225

1,538,190

2,125,200

2,450,000

2,500,000

2,550,000

2,706,350

3,300,000

5,280,000

6,000,000

11,100,395

86,521,490

276,605,983

8,008 478,187,971
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CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDERS

as at June 30, 2023
No. of Share 

Holders
Shares HeldCategories of Shareholders Percentage

         

Directors, Chief Executive Ofcer and their Spouse(s) 

and Children

Associatied Companies

Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies

Modaraba Companies

Mutual Funds

NIT & ICP

Leasing Companies

Individuals

Joint Stock Companies

Foreign Companies

Others

Shareholders holding 10% or more

7                      

3                      

3                      

3                      

4                      

2                      

2                      

1                      

7,939               

40                    

1                      

                      3 

2                      

2,577,403

371,817,473

175,404

73,098

18,051

129,883

153,705

8,646

92,806,046

4,298,462

100,650

6,029,150

366,537,473

0.54

77.76

0.04

0.02

0.00

0.03

0.03

0.00

19.41

0.90

0.02

1.26

76.65

Total (excluding shareholders holding 10% or more)                8,008 478,187,971 100.00
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PATTERN OF THE SHARE HOLDING - CLASS B
as at June 30, 2023

FORM - 34

NUMBER OF
SHARES HELD

NO OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF SHARES

From To

1

101

501

1,001

5,001

10,001

15,001

20,001

25,001

35,001

40,001

45,001

50,001

55,001

60,001

75,001

85,001

95,001

100,001

190,001

605,001

770,001

795,001

3,885,001

4,115,001

10,390,001

100

500

1,000

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

55,000

60,000

65,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

105,000

195,000

610,000

775,000

800,000

3,890,000

4,120,000

10,395,000

23

32

16

20

8

4

1

2

1

1

1

2

1

1

3

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1,111

10,522

13,624

46,056

65,304

55,477

15,848

45,511

26,500

40,000

44,022

100,000

52,500

58,153

189,578

79,500

180,000

98,000

104,402

193,000

607,000

774,719

800,000

3,889,424

4,115,500

10,394,249

128 22,000,000
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CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDERS - CLASS B

as at June 30, 2023
No. of Share 

Holders
Shares HeldCategories of Shareholders Percentage

         Total (excluding shareholders holding 10% or more)                       128 22,000,000 100.00

1                          

2                          

125                      

2                          

15,848

14,509,749

7,474,403

18,399,173

0.07

65.95

33.97

83.63

Directors, Chief Executive Ofcer and their Spouse(s) 

and Children

Modaraba Companies

Individuals

Shareholders holding 10% or more
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Lahore

October 05, 2023

Masroor Ahmad Khan

Chairman, Board of Directors 

On Board's overall Performance u/s 192 of the Companies Act 2017

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 and the 

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 with respect to the composition, procedures 

and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an 

annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (the “Company”) is 

carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is 

measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company. Areas where 

improvements are required are duly considered and action plans are framed. For the purpose of Board evaluation, a 

comprehensive criteria has been developed. The Board has recently completed its annual self-evaluation for the year 

ended June 30, 2023 and I report that:

The Board remained updated with respect to periodic achievements of Company's objectives, goals, strategies 

and nancial performance through review of reports from management, internal auditors and other consultants. 

As a result the Board was able to provide effective leadership to the Company;

1.

Engagement in strategic planning: Board has a clear understanding of the stakeholders (shareholders, 

customers, employees, vendors, society at large) whom the Company serves. The Board has a strategic vision 

of how the organization should be evolving over the next three to ve years. Further, the Board has spent 

sufcient time on strategy formulation and it has set annual goals and targets for the management in all major 

performance areas.

2.

Diligence: The Board members diligently performed their duties and thoroughly reviewed, discussed and 

approved business strategies, corporate objectives, plans, budgets, nancial statements and other reports. It 

received clear and succinct agendas and supporting written material in sufcient time prior to board and 

committee meetings. The board met frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities.

3.

Monitoring of organization's business activities: The Board remained updated with respect to achievement of 

Company's objectives, goals, strategies and nancial performance through regular presentations by the 

management, internal and external auditors and other independent consultants. The Board provided appropriate 

direction and oversight on a timely basis.

4.

Governance and Control Environment: The Board has effectively set the tone-at-the-top, by putting in place 

transparent and robust system of governance. This is reected by setting up an effective control environment, 

compliance with best practices of corporate governance and by promoting ethical and fair behavior across the 

company.

5.

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of approved criteria for the year was satisfactory. The 

overall assessment as satisfactory is based on an evaluation of the following integral components, which have a 

direct bearing on Board's role in achievement of Company's objectives:
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LAHORE; OCTOBER 05, 2023 SHINEWING HAMEED  CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

UDIN: CR202310195ZYm9dnFVt  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the

Board of Directors of GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the Company) for
the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of
the Regulations.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that
the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance,
in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for
their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

INDEPENDENT  AUDITORS'  REVIEW  REPORT  TO  THE  MEMBERS  OF   

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies 

( Code of Corporate Governance ) Regulations, 2019

GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 

 
Name of Company:  Ghani Chemical Industries Limited  
Year ended:  June 30, 2023 
  
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-  
 
1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following,-  

 
a. Male: 6  
b. Female:  1 

 
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:-  

 
i. Independent directors:  Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan 
     Haz Imran Lateef 
     
ii. Non-Executive directors:  Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan  
     Mr. Muhammad Yahya 
     Ms. Rabia Atique  
     
iii. Executive directors:    Haz Farooq Ahmad 
      Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan 
 
iv. Female director:    Ms. Rabia Atique 
 

For a Board comprising of seven members, one-third equates to 2.33. Two independent directors have 
been appointed, hence it fullls the requirement of minimum two (2) independent directors. Furthermore, 
the two independent directors have the requisite skills and knowledge to take independent decisions. 
However, fractional contained in one-third number (i.e., 0.33) is not rounded up as one (1), being less 
than 0.5.  
 
Following three (3) casual vacancies occurred during the nancial year 2022-23. The process of lling 
up the casual vacancies was completed within the stipulated time period as per the Act. The details are 
provided as under:- 

  
Sr. 
# 

Name of resigning 
Director 

Category 
Date of 

resignation 
Name of new Director 
appointed 

Date of 
appointment 

1 Ms. Farzin Khan Independent 29-04-23 
Ms. Rabia Atique 
(Non-Executive) 

29-04-23 

2 
Mr. Muhammad 
Ashraf Bawany 

Executive 29-04-23 
Mr. Muhammad Yahya 
(Non-Executive) 

29-04-23 
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3 Mr. Mahmood Ahmad Independent 12-06-23 
Sheikh Muhammad 
Saleem Ahsan 

12-06-23 

 
3. The directors have conrmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed 

companies, including this company;  
 
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 

taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;  
 
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and signicant 

policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the signicant 
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;  

 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 

taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations;  

 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;  

 
8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and these Regulations;  
 
9. Four (4) Directors out of seven (7) Directors have the prescribed certication under the Directors’ 

Training Program.  Furthermore, one (1) of the Directors is exempt from the directors training 
program by virtue of his education and experience as per regulations.  

 
10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Ofcer, Company Secretary and Head of 

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations;  

 
11. The Chief Financial Ofcer and Chief Executive Ofcer duly endorsed the nancial statements before 

approval of the Board;  
 
12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-  

 
a) Audit & Risk Management Committee:  

 

Sr. No.  Name Status 

1.  Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan Chairman 

2.  Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan Member 

3.  Mrs. Rabia Atique Member 
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b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee: 
 

Sr. No.  Name Status 

1.  Haz Imran Lateef Chairman 

2.  Mrs. Rabia Atique  Member 

3.  Haz Farooq Ahmad Member 

4.  Mr. Muhammad Yahya Member 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to 

the committee for compliance;  
 
14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:-  
 

a)  Audit & Risk Management Committee - Quarterly  
b)  HR&R and Compensation Committee - Annually 

 
15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit function 

to who are considered suitably qualied and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with 
the policies and procedures of the company;  

 
16. The statutory auditors of the company have conrmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 

under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and 
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance 
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the rm involved in 
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the 
chief executive ofcer, chief nancial ofcer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director 
of the company;  

 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 

services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirements 
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;  

 
18. We conrm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have 

been complied with.  
 
19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 

36 are below (if applicable):  
 

Regulation No. 19:  
Remaining 03 members have acquired the director training program during September 2023. 

 

 
 

________________________ 
(HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD) 

Chief Executive Ofcer 
 

______________________ 
(ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN) 

Director 
 

Lahore. 
05-10-2023 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

Assalam-o-Alaikum Wa RehmatUllah Wa Barakatoh! 

OVERVIEW OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

The scal year 2023 posed signicant challenges for Pakistan's economy, characterized by modest GDP growth 
compared to the previous year. Throughout FY 2023, Pakistan grappled with various economic crises, including 
global energy challenges, external debt burdens, ood disasters, inationary pressures, and political uncertainty. In 
the early months of 2023, Pakistan faced severe economic stress but managed to regain stability through a USD 3 
billion IMF Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) and nancial aid from friendly nations. These inows bolstered Pakistan's 
foreign exchange reserves, helping to maintain the exchange rate at 277.6 PKR/USD as of the end of June 2023.

The directors of your Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited) are pleased to present the audited nancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, in compliance with the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017. 

Notably, the Current Account Decit saw a remarkable reduction of 81% up to May 2023, driven by stringent import 
controls, shortages of foreign currency reserves, and a decrease in exports and remittances. Despite soaring to a 
peak of 38% in May 2023, ination exhibited signs of moderation, with June's gures slowing down to 29.4%. 
Meanwhile, the overall average trading volumes for the KSE 100 index remained subdued throughout FY2023.

Due to political uncertainty and catastrophic oods, Pakistan faced unprecedented challenges during FY 22-23. The 
energy crises, infrastructure deciencies, security concerns, signicant depreciation of PKR against USD and trade 
imbalances are all legacy issues that cannot be overlooked. Furthermore, the Ukraine-Russia conict substantially 
disrupted the global demand-supply balance, leading in a commodity super cycle and a slowing of global economic 
growth. The government's inability and thereafter delay in to nalize an agreement with the IMF aggravated the 
economy's problems. 

According to the World Bank Pakistan's economy was expected to grow by only 2 percent in the scal year ended 
June 2023, and would increase to 3.2% in 2024.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITY

Your Company is principally engaged in manufacturing, sale and trading of medical/ industrial gases and chemicals. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Alhamdulillah sales and end result performance of your Company has considerably increased as compared with the 
last year.
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By the grace of Almighty Allah despite all adverse factors, your Company succeeded to improve the sale/ turnover as 
compared to the last year. For the year ended June 2023, your Company closed the gross sale at Rs. 5,111 million 
mark as compared to last year end sales of Rs. 4,810 million showing the 6% increase in sales. Gross prot 
decreased from Rs. 1,749 million to Rs. 1,460 million due to considerable increase in electricity cost being the only 
raw material and major cost for manufacturing of medical and industrial gases. Distribution expenses decreased 
whereas administrative expenses has been increased in terms of percentage to sales from 7% to 4%, and 4% to 5%, 



respectively. Despite all adverse economic factors your Company's operating prot is Rs. 1,306 million as compared 
to last year's operating prot of Rs. 1,436 million. Due to signicant increase in interest rate, nance cost increased 
from Rs. 230 million to Rs. 374 million. Accordingly prot after taxation restricted to Rs. 508 million against Rs. 870 
million in comparison with same period of last year.  Earnings per share is Rs. 1.06 whereas during last year 
Company's Earnings per share was Rs. 2.26. In the result of revaluation of land, your Company succeeded to add Rs. 
497 million (2022: Rs. 1,329 million) in nancial results and accordingly total comprehensive income for the year is 
Rs. 1,005 million (2022: Rs. 2,200 million) and earning per share (EPS) is Rs. 2.10 (2022: Rs. 5.06).

A comparison of the key nancial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as under:

By the grace of Almighty Allah your Company is managing its repayments against the long term loans timely. Return 
on capital employed has decreased from 15.91% to 12.07%. In nancial, Current ratio of the company has also 
improved from 1.83 to 2.32. Debt equity ratio also improved from 35:65 to 32:68 ALHAMDULILLAH.
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Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS Variance
Jun-23 Jun-22 Rs. 000 %

Sales

   
        

6%
  

 

Gross profit

   

-17%
 

-
 

 

   

    

 

Share of prot of an associated company

  

100%

Profit before taxation

   

-20%

Taxation

 

19%

Profit after taxation

 
  

-42%

Surplus revaluation of land

   

-63%
Total comprehensive income for the year

    

-54%
Earnings per share (EPS) - restated 

       

5,111,123 
       
      
 

       

1,459,838 
         
 
         
 
          
 

          

       
         
 

                  

-

    

          

931,639 

         

(423,748)

 

          

507,891 

497,278
1,005,169

1.06 

       

4,809,826 
       
      
 

       

1,749,455 
         
 
         
 
         
 

          

       
         
 

           

18,047        

1,163,912 

         

(354,866)

 

          

870,449 

1,329,495
2,199,944

2.26 -

301,297 

 
        

Sales –

 

net

 

3%4,332,196 4,214,089 118,107 

 
       

Cost of sales 17%(2,872,358) (2,464,634) (407,724)

 
       

(289,617)

 
        

Distribution cost 36%(193,425) (303,967) 110,542 

 
        

Administrative expenses 15%(215,623) (187,363) (28,260)

 
         

Other expenses -29%(75,704) (106,352) 30,648 

 
         

Other income 16%330,935 285,121 45,814 

 
        

Profit from operations -9%1,306,021 1,436,894 (84,673)

 
       

Finance cost 63%(374,382) (229,626) (144,756)

 
        

(18,047)

 
       

(232,273)

 
        

(68,882)

 
       

(362,558)

 
 

(832,217)

 
 

(1,194,775)
-

   

2.10 5.06 -

  

-EPS based on comprehensive income - restated



The country's healthcare market has been steadily growing to become one of the largest in terms of oxygen 
consumption.

The industrial sector in Pakistan has been experiencing a decline. The deteriorating enterprise efciency hampered 
overall economic growth. Higher cost of Production, Insufcient infrastructure, lower productivity, unfavorable 
environment for industrial growth, among others, have contributed to the decline in Pakistan's industrial sector. The 
consumption of industrial gases is often considered one of the indicator of a developing economy.

The industrial gas market in Pakistan is an important sector that caters to various industries and manufacturing 
processes. It involves the production and supply of gases, such as oxygen nitrogen, Argon, and others in both gas 
and liquid forms.

Your Company supply these gases in a variety of sectors for applications like packing, cooling, cryogenic 
processing, cutting and welding, laboratory use, and more. Oil and gas, chemicals, petrochemicals, food and 
beverages, electricity generation, pulp and paper, electronics, water treatment, mining, and other major end-use 
sectors are examples.

MAJOR EVENTS

During July 2022, your Company setup 100TPD ASU plant for manufacturing of Oxygen and Nitrogen gases at Port 
Qasim, Karachi to honour the commitments of a long-term supply agreement signed with Engro Polymer and 
Chemicals Limited.

thSetup of 4  ASU Plant:

Your Company has been listed at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) on November 14, 2022 in the result of 
merger of G3 Technologies Limited (formerly Service Fabrics Limited) with and into the Company (Ghani Chemical 
Industries Limited) in pursuant to the scheme of compromises, arrangement and reconstruction sanctioned by the 
Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore in petition no. C.O. 25797/2022.

Listing at PSX:

In compliance with approval by the shareholders of your Company in their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 
December 20, 2022, your Company has divested its shareholdings in three inactive subsidiary companies; namely, 
'A One Prefabs (Private) Limited', 'Awal Engineering (Private) Limited' and 'A One Batteries (Private) Limited' having 
nominal paid up capital of Rs. 25,000/- each. Your Company earned prot on disposal of this investment amounting 
to Rs.150,090/.

Divestment of shareholdings in inactive subsidiaries:

New opportunities for industrial gases are being explored in order to improve market penetration and volume.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In terms of manufacturing capacity, GCIL is the market leader, accounting for 35% of total volume in the country. We 
are the largest producer and supplier of medical and industrial gases in the North West region. 

The setup of 5th ASU plant and an import substitute chemical project of your Company in Hattar Special Economic 
Zone are actively in process. These projects are expected to be in operation during 1st quarter of 2024 Insha'Allah. 

Despite numerous challenges, your Company maintained ongoing growth by capitalizing on market opportunities, 
particularly in the healthcare sector, as well as the long and medium term agreement in terms of both top line and 
bottom line growth attained and cost cutting side by side.
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The management of your Company strongly believes in passing on the return of investment to their shareholders. 
During the year under review, your Company paid 10% Bonus shares which were credited during December 2022. 

PAYOUT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

The present auditors' M/s. SHINEWING Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants will retire on conclusion of 
Annual General Meeting being held on October 28, 2023. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of 
Directors has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

On listing of your Company at PSX, share price of Rs. 10 each opened at Rs. 37.55 on November, 14 2022. 
Thereafter share price gone as low as Rs. 8.40 on June 21, 2023 and closed at Rs. 9.44 as on June 30, 2023.

SHARE PRICE TREND 

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited operates a funded, contributory Provident Fund Scheme for its employees and 
contributions based on salaries of the employees are made to the Fund on monthly basis.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT 

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited has adopted the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) in their Rule Book, relevant for the year ended June 30, 2023 and have 
been duly complied with. 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

A Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is annexed. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The board of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited has adopted code of conduct for its Board of Directors and the 
employees. All concerns are informed of these codes and are required to observe the rules of conduct in relation to 
customers, suppliers and regulations. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

During the year under review Ghani Chemical Industries has contributed Rs. 641.3 million (2022 Rs. 527.4 million) 
in shape of taxes, duties and levies paid to central and provincial governments and local authorities. 

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER 

The Board has formed an Audit and Risk Management Committee. It comprises of three members, of whom one is 
independent and two are non-executive directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Names of Members of Audit and Risk Management Committee are as under: 

The Audit Committee has its terms of reference which were determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with 
the guidelines provided in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

Name of Director Category Designation in Committee 

Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan  Independent director Chairman 

Masroor Ahmad Khan Non-executive director Member 

Rabia Atique Non-executive director Member 
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Economic recovery and political stability, as well as the reduction of inationary pressures and the pursuit of 
sustainable and reasonable growth, would be critical in moving the country forward in the coming year.
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Names of Members of HR & R Committee are as under: 

Your Company is committed to establishing mutually benecial relations with all stakeholders, stock exchange, 
SECP, bankers and all other business partners of the Company. Alhamdulillah during the period under review 
relations with all stakeholders remained cordial. 

RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS 

GCIL is committed to both sustainable business practices and its responsibilities as a corporate citizen. We believe 
that the Corporate Social Responsibility is primarily about conducting business in a transparent and ethical way that 
not only enhances value of all of our stakeholders but also gives support to the events that enhance the well-being of 
the community.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Board of Directors, which consist of Seven (07) members, have responsibility to independently and 
transparently monitor the performance of the Company and take strategic decision to achieve sustainable growth in 
the Company value. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Composition of directors:

The Corporate Social Responsibility and guidelines for corporate governance are steps in the right direction. 
Customer Relation Management is a strategic business philosophy and processes are rooted through ethical 
practice. With the growth of our business, we have assumed an even greater responsibility towards our society and 
stakeholders, including employees, their families and our business partner etc. 

The GCIL also supports a clean environment and motivates its customers for this cause the GCIL also tries its level 
best that the business activities of customers must be environment-friendly and not be hazardous to the society. 

From the last many years, the Company has been sending every year one employee of the Company, selected 
through balloting, to perform Hajj (with pay on Company's expense). Ghani Chemical Industries endeavors to be a 
trusted corporate entity and fullls the responsibility towards the environment and society in general. 

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) and Compensation Committee. It comprises 
three members, of whom one is independent, one is non-executive and one is executive director. 

HR&R AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) and Compensation Committee. It comprises 
three members, of whom one is independent, one is non-executive and one is executive director. 

HR&R AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 

 
Name of Director Category Designation in Committee 

Haz Imran Lateef Independent director Chairman 

Rabia Atique  Non- Executive director Member 

   Haz Farooq Ahmad  Executive director Member 

Description 

Male 

Female 

Total 

Number of Directors 

06 

01 

07 

Categories 

Independent directors 

Non-executive directors 

Executive directors 

 

Number of Directors 

02 

03 

02 

Total 07 

32 Annual Report 2023Ghani Chemical Industries Limited



The present board of directors were elected in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 31, 2022 for 
a period of three years and shall retire on October 30, 2025. 

DURATION OF THE DIRECTORS

During the year under review aggregate amount of remuneration paid to the Chief Executive Ofcer and Executive 
Director is disclosed in Note No. 44 of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan 
Mr. Muhammad Yahya
Ms. Rabia Atique 

iii. Executive directors: Haz Farooq Ahmad
Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan

iv. Female director: Ms. Rabia Atique

The Chairman board of directors is among the non-executive directors. 

A written notice of the board meeting along with working papers was sent to the members seven days before the 
meeting. 

A total of ve (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended June 30, 2023. Leave of 
absence was granted to the directors who could not attend some of the board meetings. 

Following three (3) casual vacancies occurred during the nancial year 2022-23. The process of lling up the casual 
vacancies was completed within the stipulated time period as per the Act. The details are provided as under:-

In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) and the Companies Act, 2017 the evaluation of the 
Board, its committees and individual directors was conducted. The Board is assisted by sub committees i.e., the 
Audit & Risk Management Committee and the HR&R and Compensation Committee, and these sub committees 
held meetings during the year as per the stipulation of CCG. It is also important to recognize the key role played by 
the sub-committees in assisting board of directors in performing their duties.

BOARD EVALUATION: 

The Board Evaluation of your Company was conducted by an independent external evaluator M/s Javed Chaudhry &  
Co. Chartered Accountants for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The composition of the Board is as follows:- 

i. Independent directors: Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan
Haz Imran Lateef
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Sr. 

# 
Name of resigning 

Director Category 
Date of 

resignation  
Name of new Director 

appointed  
Date of 

appointment  

1 Ms. Farzin Khan Independent 29-04-23 
Ms. Rabia Atique  

(Non-Executive)  
29-04-2023  

2 
Mr. Muhammad 

Ashraf Bawany 
Executive 29-04-23 

Mr. Muhammad Yahya  

(Non-Executive)  
29-04-2023  

3 Mr. Mahmood Ahmad Independent 12-06-23 
Sheikh Muhammad 

Saleem Ahsan  
12-06-2023  
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The Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in the listing regulation of 
stock exchange in Pakistan. The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm's length prices determined 
in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled prices method. During the year, the Company carried out 
transactions with its related parties. Details of these transactions are disclosed in nancial statements attached 
therein (note 45).  Details of related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Board Audit Committee, the same are placed before the Board of Directors for review and 
approval in accordance with regulatory requirements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The chairman's review deals with the overall performance of the board and effectiveness of the role played by the 
board in achieving the company's objectives for the year ended June 30, 2023 in compliance with section 192 (4) of 
the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW 

A pattern of shareholding as required under section 227(2) (f) of the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

No material changes or commitments affecting the nancial position of the Company have occurred between the end 
of nancial year of the Company and date of this report, except the conversion of 22,000,000 Class B Shares to 
Ordinary shares of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

The directors express their deep appreciation to our valued stakeholders who placed their condence in the 
Company. We would like to express sincere appreciation to the dedication of Company's employees to their 
professional obligations and cooperation by the bankers, government agencies, which have enabled the Company 
and its subsidiaries to display good performance both in operational and nancial elds. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT  

We thank our shareholders who reposed their condence on management of the Company, the ofcials of the SECP, 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange and all government functionaries as well as the commandments of Allah Subhanatallah 
and Sunnah of our Prophet Muhammad (peace be upon him). 

On behalf of the Board

HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD

(Chief Executive Ofcer)

Lahore

October 05, 2023

No remuneration except Meeting Fee for attending the board meetings amounting to Rs. 25,000/- per meeting is paid 
to non-executive and independent directors of the board. 

ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN

(Director)

Remuneration of Executive directors including CEO are reviewed annually by the board of directors. 
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Ã»ƒäzZá‚wÆaW\ÅvÆZëâ1Cò»ñZi:øfsì: 2023 Žy 30
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Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS Variance

 

Jun-23

 

Jun-22

  

Rs. 000

 

%

 

Sales

   
        

6%

  

 

Gross profit   -17%

 -

 

 

   

    

 
Share of prot of an Associated Company

  

100%

Profit before taxation

   

-20%

Taxation

 

19%

Profit after taxation

 
  

-42%

Surplus revaluation of land

   

-63%
Total comprehensive income for the year

    

-54%
Earnings per share (EPS) - restated 

       
5,111,123 

       
      
 

       1,459,838 
         
 
         
 
          
 

          

       
         
 

                  

-

    

          

931,639 

         

(423,748)

 

          

507,891 

497,278
1,005,169

1.06 

       
4,809,826 

       
      
 

       1,749,455 
         
 
         
 
         
 

          

       
         
 

           

18,047 

       

1,163,912 

         

(354,866)

 

          

870,449 

1,329,495
2,199,944

2.26 -

301,297 
 
        

Sales –

 

net

 

3%4,332,196 4,214,089 118,107 
 
       

Cost of sales 17%(2,872,358) (2,464,634) (407,724) 
       

(289,617) 
        

Distribution cost 36%(193,425) (303,967) 110,542  
        

Administrative expenses 15%(215,623) (187,363) (28,260) 
         

Other expenses -29%(75,704) (106,352) 30,648 
 
         Other income 16%330,935 285,121 45,814 
 
        Profit from operations -9%1,306,021 1,436,894 (84,673)

 
       Finance cost 63%(374,382) (229,626) (144,756)

 
        

(18,047)

 
       

(232,273)

 
        

(68,882)

 
       

(362,558)

 
 

(832,217)

 
 

(1,194,775)
-

   2.10 5.06 -  -EPS based on comprehensive income

�gz9ìÔ‚wÆ 1,306 Ã»ƒäzZá‚w~o« 2023 JZŸ†HŠìXÓxtúZïÆ!zŽŠW\Åv»W6|Žy 5%

Å¶ìXÑbÎŠ~cVZŸ±ÅzzÐÔâ1CÑ†Zk 9% �gz9¶ÃªCÙ™@ìŽž 130 �gz9Æ£«~ 1,436 W6|o«

�gz9Æ£«~Ô‚wÅZÏæ]Æ£« 508 �gz9ƒ̂ìZkÆ_.LÆô« 374 �gz9Ð(|™ 230 Æ_.

�gz9ÐÁƒ 1,749 ìXù¦o«Ô?ZzgQuVÅ»g~ÆaÜs{xâw&Ñ†ƒäÅzzÐðÅÑ†~{§pZ{ZŸ±ÅzzÐ
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT



Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

Following are the key audit matters:

S.No.

1.

      

-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT  

TO THE MEMBERS OF GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the annexed financial statements of GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we

state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our

knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as

applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for

Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming

part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and

give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required

and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023

and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the

year then ended.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included the following:Merger of GTECH with and into the

Company (notes 1.2 to 1.4)

understood and analysed the accounting

treatment of merger transaction in the light of

relevant IFRSs;

The Board of Directors (the Board) of G3

Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) in their

meeting held on April 14, 2022 has

decided to merge GTECH with and into

the Company.
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S.No.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.
      

-

-

-

reviewed the board of directors' minutes and

resolutions related to the merger to ensure that 

the board had approved the transaction and

that it was carried out in accordance with their

directives;

Revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment (notes 5.2 & 6)

Our audit procedures, amongst others,

included the following:

ensured that merger was executed in

compliance with the Court's Order; and

assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in

the financial statements made by the

Company with regard to the merger

transaction as per the applicable accounting

and reporting standards.

verified the relevant documentation relating to

the merger transaction;

Under IAS 16 (Property, plant and

equipment), the management carries its

freehold land and leasehold land under

revaluation model.

obtained understanding of the valuation

process and techniques adopted by the

valuation Expert to assess the reasonableness

of the reports;

evaluated the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the independent external property

valuation Expert engaged by the management

as management Expert for valuation;

Under the said model, if fair value can be

measured reliably, an entity may carry all

items of property, plant and equipment of

a class at a revalued amount, which is

the fair value of the items at the date of

revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

obtained the valuation reports of external

valuation Expert and tested mathematical

accuracy of the reports; and

The merger of GTECH with and into the

Company is considered a key audit

matter due to the one-off nature of

transaction, complexity of its settlement

and accounting treatment in the financial

statements.

understood and evaluated the process of

identifying the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed;

evaluated the internal controls in place for

identifying, measuring, and recording the

merger-related transactions and ensuring their

accuracy;

checked the intercompany balances and

transactions between GTECH and the

Company to assess the accuracy and

completeness of the elimination adjustments;
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S.No.

-

3.      

-

-

-

reviewed terms and conditions of financing

agreements entered into by the Company with

various banks and financial institutions;

reviewed maturity analysis of financing to

ascertain the classification of financing as per

their remaining maturities;

circularised direct balance confirmations to

banks and financial institutions and verified

receipts and payments from relevant

statements;

At the reporting date, the Company has

outstanding long term financing facilities

aggregating Rs.1,494 million including

Rs.783.169 million obtained during the

current year, which constitute

approximately 35% of total liabilities of

the Company.

Freehold land has been revalued on the

basis of present market value whereas

leasehold land has been revalued on the

basis of present (realisable) market

value. This technique requires significant

judgment as to estimating the revalued

amount in terms of their quality, structure,

layout and locations.

assessed the adequacy of the related

disclosures in the annexed financial

statements.

Financing obligations and compliance

with related covenant requirements

(note 23)

Our audit procedures, amongst others,

included the following:

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified valuation of freehold land

and leasehold land as a key audit matter

due to the significant carrying values and

the significant management judgment

and estimation involved in determining

their values due to factors described

above.

As at June 30, 2023 the carrying value of

freehold land and leasehold land

aggregated Rs.2,104.274 million. The

fair value of the Company's freehold land

and leasehold land were assessed by

management based on independent

valuation performed by an external

property valuation Expert as at June 19,

2023.
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S.No.

-

-

-

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Company's key operating /

performance indicators including liquidity,

gearing and finance cost are directly

influenced by the additions to the portfolio

of financing. Further, new financing

arrangements entail additional financial

and non-financial covenants for the

Company to comply with.
checked on test basis the calculations of

finance cost recognised in the statement of

profit or loss; and

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the

requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The significance of new financing

obtained during the year along with the

sensitivity of compliance with underlying

financing covenants are considered a key

area of focus during the audit and

therefore, we have identified this as a key

audit matter.

assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in

respect of the long term financing obligations

in the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

assessed the status of compliance with

financing covenants and also inquired from the

management with regard to their ability to

ensure future compliance with the covenants;
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

●

●

●

●

●

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we

are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Other Matters

-

-

LAHORE; OCTOBER 05, 2023 SHINEWING HAMEED  CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

UDIN: AR202310195HJW6fyk1P  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is

Nafees ud din.

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for

the purpose of the Company’s business; and

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies

Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of

1980).

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with

the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of

2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

Corresponding figures in the annexed financial statements have been extracted from the

audited financial statements of the Company and GTECH for the year ended June 30, 2022

and reviewed financial statements of GTECH for the six months period ended December

31, 2021 in view of the Court's Order dated October 11, 2022 sanctioning the scheme of

merger with effect from December 31, 2021.

The financial statements of G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH - merged with the Company with

effect from December 31, 2021) for the year ended June 30, 2022 and six months period

ended December 31, 2021 were audited and reviewed by another Auditor who expressed

un-modified opinions on those financial statements on October 04, 2022 and February 28,

2022 respectively.
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Restated 

2023 2022
ASSETS Note

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 7,210,169

      
5,889,849

      
Right of use assets 6 498,874

         
391,504
         

Intangible assets 7 1,479
             

2,714
             

Investments 8 0 75
                  Long term deposits 9 67,193

           
67,193

           7,777,715
      

6,351,335
      Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 10 313,845
         

246,754
         Stock-in-trade 11 79,375

           
135,260

         Trade debts 12 1,020,529

      

824,973

         Loans and advances 13 1,582,155

      

809,222

         Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 443,570

         

433,405

         Tax refunds due from Government 15 34,230

           

23,861

           Advance income tax 16 440,031

         

417,798

         Short term investments 17 911,000

         

659,000

         Cash and bank balances 18 525,173

         

855,168

         5,349,908

      

4,405,441

      Non-current assets held-for-sale 19 0 678,879

         Total assets 13,127,623

    

11,435,655

    
Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves
Share capital 20 5,001,879

      

4,347,163

      
Share premium 21 164,011

         

300,000

         
Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land 22 497,278

         

298,727

         
Merger reserve 1.4 1,342,746

      

1,342,746

      

Unappropriated profit 1,824,044

      

1,316,153

      

Total equity 8,829,958

      

7,604,789

      

Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 23 1,270,043

      

756,211

         

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 24 0 162,500

         

Long term security deposits 25 49,091

           

44,266

           

Lease liabilities 26 5,805

             

5,739

             

Deferred liabilities 27 662,815

         

456,314

         

1,987,754

      

1,425,030

      

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 350,096

         

289,419

         

Contract liabilities - advances from customers 59,745

           

53,682

           

Accrued profit 29 122,787

         

83,198

           

Unclaimed dividend 491

                

491

                

Short term borrowings 30 1,127,439

      

1,364,564

      

Current portion of non-current liabilities 31 407,883

         

380,125

         

Taxation 32 241,470

         

234,357

         

2,309,911

      

2,405,836

      

Total liabilities 4,297,665

      

3,830,866

      

Contingencies and commitments 33

Total equity and liabilities 13,127,623

    

11,435,655

    

Rupees in thousand

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

(Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Restated 

2023 2022

Note

Sales 34 5,111,123 4,809,826

Less: sales tax 34 (778,927) (595,737)

Sales - net 4,332,196 4,214,089

Cost of sales 35 (2,872,358) (2,464,634)

Gross profit 1,459,838 1,749,455

Distribution cost 36 (193,425) (303,967)

Administrative expenses 37 (215,623) (187,363)

Other expenses 38 (75,702) (106,352)

Other income 39 330,934     285,121     

(153,816) (312,561)

Profit from operations 1,306,022 1,436,894

Finance cost 40 (374,382) (229,626)

931,640     1,207,268  

Share of profit of an Associated Company 41 0 18,047

Profit before taxation 931,640 1,225,315

Taxation 42 (423,749) (354,866)

Profit after taxation 507,891 870,449

Other comprehensive income

Surplus arisen upon revaluation of:

 - freehold land 5.2 246,080 955,997

 - leasehold land 5.2 & 6.1 251,198 373,498

497,278 1,329,495

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,005,169 2,199,944

Earnings per share 43 1.06 2.05

Rupees in thousand

------- Rupees -------

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

(Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE  YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Share 

premium 

Revaluation 

surplus on 

freehold and 

leasehold 

land

Merger 

reserve

Balance as at June 30, 2021 1,535,250 913,951 0 0 463,285 2,912,486

Transactions with owners:

- Proceeds from right shares issued 100,000 300,000 0 0 0 400,000

- Bonus shares issued 1,962,300 (913,951) (1,030,768) 0 (17,581) 0

Total comprehensive income for the

year ended June 30 , 2022 0 0 1,329,495 0 870,449 2,199,944

Gain arisen under the scheme

of merger (note 1.4) 0 0 0 1,342,746 0 1,342,746

Shares issued upon merger of 

GTECH with and into 

the Company 749,613 0 0 0 0 749,613

4,347,163 300,000 298,727 1,342,746 1,316,153 7,604,789

Transactions with owners:

- Proceeds from right shares issued 220,000 0 0 0 0               220,000

- Bonus shares issued 434,716 (135,989)  (298,727)      0              0               0

Total comprehensive income for the

year ended June 30, 2023 0 0 497,278 0 507,891 1,005,169

5,001,879 164,011 497,278 1,342,746 1,824,044 8,829,958

----------------------------- Rupees in thousand -----------------------------

Total

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Share

capital

Revenue 

reserve 

unappr-

opriated 

profit 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 - Restated

Balance as at June 30, 2023

Capital reserves

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

(Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year - before taxation 931,640       1,225,315  
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Finance cost 374,382       229,626     
Depreciation 157,404       137,698     
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,235           2,962         
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 10,782         8,779         
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (7,469)          (149,409)    
Credit balances written back 0 (14,295)      
Advance against leasehold land at Hattar 0 (15,000)      
Share of profit of an Associated Company 0 (18,047)      
Allowance for expected credit loss 4,337 6,381         
Profit before working capital changes 1,472,311    1,414,010  
Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools (67,091)
        

8,637
         

Stock-in-trade 55,885
         

(33,779)
      

Trade debts (199,893)
      

(107,726)
    

Loan and advances (772,933)
      

(663,574)
    

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (10,165)
        

(292,298)
    

Short term investments (252,000)
      

721,000
     

Tax refunds due from Government (10,369)
        

1,011
         

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 66,786
         

(25,433)
      

(1,189,780)
   

(392,162)
    

Cash generated from operations 282,531
       

1,021,848
  

Income tax paid (245,881)
      

(150,518)
    

Net cash generated from operating activities 36,650
         

871,330
     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (1,105,749) (991,035)
    Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 66,823

         
377,799

     Proceeds from sale of long term and held-for-sale investments - net 626,704
       

(198,593)
    

Net cash used in investing activities (412,222)
      

(811,829)
    CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of right shares 220,000
       

400,000
     Long term finances 608,150

       
163,803

     Redeemable capital - Sukuk (redeemed) (216,667)
      

(216,667)
    Long term security deposits - net 4,825

           
(7,756)

        Short term borrowings (237,125)
      

527,547
     Lease liabilities (432)

             
(287)

           Finance cost paid (333,174)
      

(181,626)
    Net cash generated from financing activities 45,577

         
685,014

     Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (329,995)

      

744,515

     Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 855,168

       

63,418

       Cash and cash equivalents acquired upon merger of

   G3 Technologies Ltd. 0 47,235

       Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 525,173

       

855,168

     

(Rupees in thousand)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

(Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2 Merger of GTECH with and into GCIL

Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private
limited company on November 23, 2015 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984
(now the Companies Act, 2017) and was converted into a public limited company on April
20, 2017. The Company is principally engaged in manufacturing, sale and trading of medical
& industrial gases and chemicals. The registered office and head office of the Company are
situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore whereas production facilities are situated at
Phool Nagar, District Kasur and Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. The Company’s
liaison office is situated in Sangjani, District Rawalpindi.

As per the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme), as
sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Holding Company
had transferred its manufacturing undertaking to the Company on July 08, 2019 after the
effective date.

G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH - formerly Service Fabrics Ltd.) was incorporated in Pakistan
on December 01, 1987 as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). Name of the
Company was changed to G3 Technologies Ltd. on November 17, 2021. The shares of
GTECH were quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. GTECH was domiciled in Pakistan
and its registered office was situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore. GTECH had
also changed its principal business from selling of fabrics to manufacturing and trading of
chemicals.

(ii) The transfer / vesting was subject to the existing charges / mortgages / hypothecation, if
any. There were, however, no charges / mortgages / hypothecation registered on the assets
of GTECH.

(iii) The moveable assets of GTECH were transferred and became property of GCIL as its
integral part.

(iv) All the immovable assets and properties and other rights, connections including listing
status with Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. (PSX) and CDS rights with Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Ltd. (CDC) etc. of GTECH stood transferred in the name of GCIL on
the effective date.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Ghani Global Holdings Ltd., which holds 279,905,983
(2022:251,459,985) ordinary shares of the Company representing 58.53% ( 2022: 69.90%)
of its paid-up capital as at June 30, 2023.

The Court has specified December 31, 2021 as the effective date of merger. As a result of
the merger, from and on the effective date:

(i) The undertaking of GTECH as at the effective date stood transferred to and vested in
GCIL.

The Board of Directors (the Board) of GTECH in their meeting held on April 14, 2022 has
decided to merge GTECH with and into Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL - an
Associated Company). The Board has also filed a petition before the Lahore High Court,
Lahore (LHC) for sanctioning the Scheme of Merger after completion of all related
formalities. The Board has also held Extraordinary General Meeting of GTECH on May 07,
2022 for approval of disinvestment of 22,000,000 ordinary shares of Ghani Chemical
Industries Ltd. The LHC has approved the joint petition filed by the Company and GTECH
vide its order dated October 11, 2022.
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1.3

(viii) All the banking, whether current, deposit, investment, saving and other accounts
maintained in the name of GTECH stood transferred to GCIL.

(ix) Listing status of GTECH with PSX and eligibility status with CDC along with all
privileges, rights and liabilities of GTECH with PSX and CDC stood transferred in the name
of GCIL.

(x) All the utility licenses, connections, meters and other facilities for electricity, gas, water
and telecommunications stood transferred to GCIL.

(xi) All the titles of land and other immovable property registered in the name of GTECH
stood transferred to GCIL.

(xii) All the employment contracts and obligations there under of GTECH stood transferred
to GCIL.

As a result of merger of GTECH with and into GCIL and on fulfilment of relevant
requirements, GTECH was delisted from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. with effect from
November 14, 2022. Trading in shares of GTECH was already suspended and the shares of
surviving entity (GCIL) were issued to the shareholders of GTECH as per the swap ratio.

Accounting policy for merger

GCIL has adopted the following accounting policy that involves accounting for the assets
and liabilities of GTECH using existing carrying values i.e. the values at the cut-off date:

(ii) - no goodwill has been recorded.

(iii) - the difference between consideration transferred and net of carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities received from GTECH (at the cut-off date), after taking effect of any
adjustments due to intercompany balances and investments, has been recognised within
equity as merger reserve.

(iv) - any intercompany balances and investments have been eliminated.

(i) - the acquired assets and liabilities have been recorded at their existing carrying values
(at the cut-off date).

(vii) All the legal proceedings instituted, causes, suits, appeals, petitions, revisions of
whatever nature by or against GTECH in the Court of Law pending on the effective date
would be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against GCIL as if this Scheme had not
been made. Such legal proceedings would stand transferred to GCIL.

(v) All the liabilities of GTECH as at the effective date stood transferred and vested in GCIL
so as to become as and from the effective date the debts, liabilities and obligations of GCIL.

(vi) All the assets of GTECH under the Scheme as at the effective date stood transferred to
GCIL. This included properties of all kinds, moveable or immovable, tangible or intangible,
leasehold property, stocks, receivables and book debts, advances, deposits, prepayments,
investments, cash and bank balances.
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1.4

Carrying 
amounts as at
December 31, 

2021

Rupees in 
thousand

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 262,497
Long term investments 409,989
Stores, spares and loose tools 26,923
Trade debts 36,275
Loans and advances 10,081
Tax refunds due from Government 17,760
Short term investments 1,380,000
Cash and bank balances 47,235

2,190,760

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 95,715
Unclaimed dividends 491
Taxation 2,195

98,401

2,092,359

Share capital issued to shareholders of GTECH (749,613)

Merger reserve (gain arisen upon merger of 

  GTECH with and into GCIL) 1,342,746 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

-

2.2 Accounting convention

Financial effect of merger based on reviewed financial statements of GTECH for the

period of six months ended December 31, 2021

GCIL has acquired assets and assumed liabilities of GTECH as detailed below:

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
where otherwise specifically stated.

Net assets acquired

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

-

- Provision for impairment of inventories.

- Allowance for expected credit loss.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

- Estimation of provisions.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities.

-

3.

3.1

3.2

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 

EXISTING STANDARDS

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment.

There is a standard and certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company for the financial year
beginning on July 01, 2022. The standard and amendments are not expected to have any
material impact on the Company’s financial reporting and, therefore, have not been
disclosed in these financial statements.

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and
future year if the revision affects both current and future years.

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax
asset (for carried forward tax losses).

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information has been rounded-off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise
stated.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies
are as follows:

There were certain amendments and interpretations to published accounting and reporting
standards that are applicable for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 but does not
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting and therefore, have not
been disclosed in these financial statements.

The following amendments and interpretations to published accounting and reporting
standards that are applicable to the Company’s financial statements covering annual
periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

Amendments and interpretations to accounting and reporting standards that became 

effective in the current year

Standards and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet 

effective and have not been early adopted by the Company
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

a) Owned

Measurement

Revaluation

Depreciation

De-recognition

Judgment and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when
incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold and leasehold land are
recognised, in statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining
surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in
which the asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged for the month in
which the asset is disposed-off.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or
retirement of an asset is represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as an income or expense.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
are the same as those applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold and leasehold land are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold and leasehold
land are stated at revalued amounts.

Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if
expectations differ from previous estimates the change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors.
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b) Right of use assets and related liabilities

c) Capital work-in-progress

4.2 Intangible assets - Software 

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The extension
and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at
which the leased assets are available for use by the Company.

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on item of property, plant and equipment,
which are in the course of construction, erection or installation. 

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure are
charged to income as and when incurred. Gain or loss arising on disposal and retirement of
intangible asset is determined as a difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as income or expense in statement of profit
or loss immediately.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. At
initial recognition, liabilities have been discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate of 8.50% ( 2022: 8.50%). Lease payment includes fixed payments with
annual increments. The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line method over
the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by
impairment losses, if any.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during
installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. Transfers are
made to respective property, plant and equipment category as and when assets are
available for use.

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss.
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also be 
measured reliably.

Software is amortised using straight line method at the rate given in note 7.1 to these
financial statements. Amortisation is charged to statement of profit or loss from the month in
which the asset is available for use. Amortisation on additions is charged on pro-rata basis
from the month in which asset is put to use, while for disposals, amortisation is charged upto
the month of disposal.

59 Annual Report 2023Ghani Chemical Industries Limited



4.3 Investments 

Subsidiaries

Associated Companies

4.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

4.5 Stock-in-trade

- Raw and packing materials

- Work-in-process

- Finished goods

- Items in transit

Investments in Subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment loss, if any. Gain / loss on
sale of investments is included in statement of profit or loss. Bonus shares are accounted for 
by increase in number of shares without any change in value.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments in
Subsidiaries to assess whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. In making an estimate of
recoverable amount of these investments, the management considers future dividend
stream and the net assets value of these investments. Impairment losses are recognised as
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in Subsidiaries, that suffered an impairment, are reviewed for possible reversal
of impairment at each reporting date. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss on investments in Subsidiaries  are reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in Associated Companies are accounted for by using equity basis of
accounting, under which the investments in Associated Companies are initially recognised at
cost and the carrying amounts are increased or decreased to recognise the Company's
share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies after the date of acquisition. The
Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies is recognised in the
Company's profit or loss. Distributions received from Associated Companies reduce the
carrying amount of investments. Adjustments to the carrying amounts are also made for
changes in the Company's proportionate interest in the Associated Companies arising from
changes in the Associated Companies' equity that have not been recognised in the
Associated Companies' profit or loss. The Company's share of those changes is recognised
directly in equity of the Company.

The carrying amount of investments is tested for impairment, by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell) with its carrying amount and
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

These are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value, plus
other charges paid thereon. Provision is also made for slow moving and obsolete items.

Particulars

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined as
follows:

Mode of valuation

At weighted average cost.

At weighted average manufacturing cost.

At weighted average manufacturing cost.

Cost comprise invoice values plus other charges 
incurred thereon.
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4.6 Trade and other receivables

4.7 Loans, advances, prepayments and trade deposits 

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

4.9 Trade and other payables 

4.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

4.11 Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Classification

i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

iii) fair value through other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and
cash at banks, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the
Company.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the
financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognised
at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial
assets and financial liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Allowance is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other
receivables. Bad debts are written-off when considered irrecoverable.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of
profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The
Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets
excluding inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such
assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to the
recoverable amount and the difference is charged to  statement of profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
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Recognition and derecognition

Measurement

Definition of default

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- 

Impairment of financial assets

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

- 

- 

Recognition of loss allowance

Write-off

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

The Company writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on
unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows
to repay the amount.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicate that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Company).

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in impairment gains.

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

The Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;
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b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) fair value through profit or loss; and

ii) other financial liabilities.

i) Fair value through profit or loss

ii) Other financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.12 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

`

4.13 Revenue recognition

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the reversal immediately in
the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue
is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities
also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial 
liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
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-

-

-

-

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

4.14 Foreign currency transactions

4.15 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

(a) Current

Revenue from sale of goods or rendering of services is recognised when performance
obligations are satisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the time when deliveries are made
or services are rendered) of a promised good or service to a customer, and control either
transfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of
services is measured net of sales tax, returns and trade discounts.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is
established, i.e. on the date of books closure of the investee company declaring the
dividend.

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods and services to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or
before payment is due.

Gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year in
which these are disposed-off.

Return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion using the effective rate of
return.

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods and services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods and services, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any, in
which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in other comprehensive income or
equity.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current year
also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed / finalised during the  year. 
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(b) Deferred

4.16 Earnings per share 

4.17 Related party transactions

4.18 Provisions 

4.19 Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

-

-

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Transactions and contracts with related parties are based on the policy that all transactions
between the Company and related parties are carried-out at an arm’s length.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in
future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustment to the amount of previously recognised
provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally
recognised as part of cost of an asset.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or

has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that temporary differences will reverse
in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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4.20 Employees’ benefits

Defined contribution plan

Compensated absences

4.21 Segment reporting

4.22 Deferred income - government grant

4.23 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 2023 2022

Operating fixed assets 5.1 6,241,673

         

5,869,182

         

Capital work-in-progress 5.9 209,889

            

20,667

              

Stores held for capital expenditure 758,607

            

0

                       

7,210,169

         

5,889,849

         

The Company operates a funded employees’ provident fund scheme for its permanent
eligible employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.33% of gross pay are made
both by the Company and employees to the fund.

On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company has two reportable segments
i.e. Industrial & Medical Gases and Industrial Chemicals.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

Compensated absences are accounted for employees of the Company on un-availed
balance of leave in the period in which the absences are earned.

Rupees in thousand

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic
decisions.

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant & equipment, stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade. Segment liabilities
comprise of long term finances, lease liabilities, short term borrowings and trade & other
payables.

Government grant is initially measured at fair value; after initial recognition, it is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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5.1Operating fixed assets - tangible

As at June 30, 2021

Cost 103,304      133,770      322,872  4,109,704        35,644          7,102         12,323         105,801     4,830,520   

Accumulated depreciation 0                 47               174,012  643,613           18,570          2,715         9,629           57,566       906,152      

Book value 103,304      133,723      148,860  3,466,091        17,074          4,387         2,694           48,235       3,924,368   

Year ended June 30, 2022

Additions 0                 0                 141,569  1,047,721        2,098            4,765         1,550           83,452       1,281,155   

Land acquired upon merger

 of GTECH (note 1.2 ) 0                 126,000      0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                126,000      

Revaluation adjustments 907,857      48,140        0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                955,997      

Transfer adjustments 29,159        (29,159)      0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                0                 

Leasehold land classified

    as held-for-sale 0                 (52,250)      0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                (52,250)      

Disposals:

- cost 0                 36,750        0             196,278           0                   0                0                  41,244       274,272      

- accumulated depreciation 0                 0                 0             (32,413)            0                   0                0                  (13,469)      (45,882)      

0                 36,750        0             163,865           0                   0                0                  27,775       228,390      

Depreciation charge 

for the year 0                 0                 16,188    105,330           1,848            532            1,060           12,740       137,698      

Book value 1,040,320   189,704      274,241  4,244,617        17,324          8,620         3,184           91,172       5,869,182   

Year ended June 30, 2023

Additions 0                 0                 0             51,757             11,719          623            1,526           92,248       157,873      

Leasehold land transferred 

  from held-for-sale category 0                 52,250        0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                52,250        

Revaluation adjustments 246,080      132,999      0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                379,079      

Depreciation 0                 47               0             0                      0                   0                0                  0                47               

Disposals:

- cost / revaluation 56,000        0                 0             198                  0                   0                0                  11,300       67,498        

- accumulated depreciation 0                 0                 0             (49)                   0                   0                0                  (8,095)        (8,144)        

56,000        0                 0             149                  0                   0                0                  3,205         59,354        - cost

Depreciation charge 

    for the year 0                 0                 27,424    97,037             2,214            909            1,218           28,602       157,404      

Book value 1,230,400   375,000      246,817  4,199,188        26,829          8,334         3,492           151,613     6,241,673   

As at June 30, 2022

Cost / revaluation 1,040,320   189,751      464,441  4,961,147        37,742          11,867       13,873         148,009     6,867,150   

Accumulated depreciation 0                 47               190,200  716,530           20,418          3,247         10,689         56,837       997,968      

Book value 1,040,320   189,704      274,241  4,244,617        17,324          8,620         3,184           91,172       5,869,182   

As at June 30, 2023

Cost / revaluation 1,230,400   375,000      464,441  5,012,706        49,461          12,490       15,399         228,957     7,388,854   

Accumulated depreciation 0                 0                 217,624  813,518           22,632          4,156         11,907         77,344       1,147,181   

Book value 1,230,400   375,000      246,817  4,199,188        26,829          8,334         3,492           151,613     6,241,673   

240,000       

Depreciation rate (% - per annum) 50-100 years 10% Machine hours 10% 10% 30% 20%

Computers Vehicles Total

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -Rupees in thousand- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Freehold 

land

Leasehold 

land
Buildings

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture 

and 

fixtures

Office 

equipment
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5.2

- 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur

- Mouza Parna, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur

- Plot Nos. 7 and 8, 9 to 12, B2, 13-24, B3, B4, Zone - B, Hattar.

Rupees in 

thousand

(a) Cost / revalued amount of freehold land as at June 19, 2023              984,320 

Revalued amount as at June 19, 2023 1,230,400

         

Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 246,080

            

(b) Cost / revalued amount of leasehold land as at June 19, 2023 63,751

              

Carrying value of leasehold land acquired upon merger of GTECH 126,000

            

Leasehold land classified as held for sale as at June 30, 2022 transferred

  to Property, Plant and Equipment  during the current year 52,250

              

Elimination of accumulated depreciation on leasehold land (47)

241,954

            

Revalued amount as at June 19, 2023 375,000

            

Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 133,046

            

(c)

(d)

5.3

The Company, during June, 2023, has again carried-out revaluations of its freehold and

leasehold land situated at :

Had there been no revaluations, book value of freehold and leasehold land would have

been Rs.76.463 million (2022: Rs.132.463 million) and Rs.193.813 million (2022:

Rs.15.610 million) respectively as at June 30, 2022.

Based on the aforementioned revaluation reports, the forced sale values of the revalued

freehold and leasehold land have been assessed at Rs.1,284.320 million (2022:

Rs.883.256 million).

The Company, during the preceding year, had classified its leasehold land located at Hattar,
Industrial Land, Plot Nos. 7, 8, 13 to 18 and B3 as held-for-sale under IFRS - 5 (Non-current
assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations). Management intended to sell this land
within the next twelve months. However, during the current financial year, the management
has changed its intention and decided to reclassify this land under Property, Plant and
Equipment.

The revaluation exercises have been carried-out by independent Valuers [ Unicorn

International Surveyors, 74-B , Gulberg II, Lahore.]. Freehold land has been revalued on the

basis of present market values whereas leasehold land has been revalued on the basis of

estimated prevailing lease rate. These revaluations have resulted in revaluation surplus

aggregating Rs.379.126 million as worked-out below:
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5.4

5.5 Particulars of immovable property in the name of the Company are as follows:

5.6

2023 2022

Cost 187,619

            

200,802

            

Book value 144,602

            

156,334

            

5.7

Cost of sales 122,162

            

118,313

            

Administrative expenses 35,242

              

19,385

              

157,404

            

137,698

            

5.8

As at June 30, 2023, plant and machinery include vacuum insulated evaporator tanks
installed at various customers' sites for supply of gas products. These assets are secured
against deposits as disclosed in note 25. Cost and book value of these vacuum insulated
evaporator tanks were as follows:

Rupees in thousand

Depreciation charge on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Leasehold land rights located at Hattar under KPEZDMC is still under provisional allotment;
therefore, at the reporting date, this has been carried as leasehold land.

Covered Area 

In sq. ft.

- 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur Manufacturing facility (gases) 67,031

- Mouza Parna, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur Industrial land -

Industrial land -

Location Usage of immovable property Total Area

150 Kanals (18.75 Acres)- Plot Nos. 7 and 8, 9 to 12, B2, 13-24, B3,B4, Zone - B, Hattar

83 Kanals and 9 Marlas

113 Kanals 8 marlas and 90 feet

Freehold land ( 7 kanals ) 56,000                 0                        56,000 55,300                (700)                   
GT Road , Sector D -15 , Islamabad.

Plant and machinery 198                      (49)                     149 350                     201                    

Vehicles

Toyota Camry 5,298                   (3,069)                2,229 6,500                  4,271                 Muhammad Shafique.

Suzuki Bolan 754                      (476)                   278 700                     422                    Shaheen Insurance Company

I-8, Markaz, Islamabad.

Suzuki Swift 1,314                   (1,123)                191 595                     404                    Muhammad Naveed.

Honda City 1,725                   (1,457)                268 778                     510                    Muhammad Naveed.

Honda Civic 2,209                   (1,970)                239 2,600                  2,361                 Mr. Maaz Amjad.

11,300                 (8,095)                3,205                  11,173                7,968                 

Total                               2023 67,498                 (8,144)                59,354                66,823                7,469                 

Total                               2022 274,272               (45,882)              228,390              377,799              149,409             

Sold to two parties.

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Sold through negotiation to:

Newtech Industries (Pvt.) Ltd.

Particulars of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year:

 Description 
 Cost / 

revaluation 

 Accumulated 

depreciation 

 Book 

value 
Sale proceeds Gain / (loss) Particulars of Purchaser
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2023 2022

Note

5.9 Capital work in progress (plant and machinery)  -  at cost

Opening balance 20,667              146,604            

Additions during the year 5.10 189,222            921,784            

Capitalised during the year 0                       (1,047,721)        

Closing balance 209,889
            

20,667
              

5.10

5.11

6. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Opening balance 400,283
            

31,689
              

Revaluation increment 6.1 118,152
            

373,498
            

Revaluation adjustment - cost (18,435)

             

(5,187)

               

Lease reassessment 0

                       

283

                   

500,000

            

400,283

            

Amortisation

Opening balance 8,779

                

5,187

                

Revaluation adjustment - accumulated
amortisation (18,435)

             

(5,187)

               

Amortised during the year 6.4 10,782

              

8,779

                

1,126

                

8,779

                

Closing balance 498,874

            

391,504

            

6.1

Rs. in thousand

Carrying value of leasehold land as at June 19, 2023 381,848

            

Revalued amount of leasehold land as at June 19, 2023 500,000

            

Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 118,152

            

6.2

6.3

6.4

Rupees in thousand

These include expenditure aggregating Rs.135.891 million (2022: Rs.20.667 million) relating
to installation of new plant (Gaseous Air Separation Unit) and expenditure aggregating
Rs.61.242 million relating to Calcium Carbide plant at Hattar, KPK.

During the year, borrowing cost at the rates ranging from 17.96% to 23.44% per annum
amounting Rs.74.143 million (2022: Rs.14.682 million) has been included in the cost of plant
and machinery.

The Company, during June, 2023, has again carried-out revaluation of leasehold land
situated at Plot No. A-53, Chemical Area, East Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi with an
area of 40 Kanals having covered area of 17,045 sq. ft. The revaluation exercise has been
carried out by independent Valuers [ Unicorn International Surveyors, 74-B, Gulberg II,
Lahore ]. Leasehold land has been revalued on the basis of present market rate of project
land and it has resulted in revaluation surplus of Rs.118.152 million as worked-out below:

Based on the aforementioned revaluation report dated June 19, 2023, the forced sale value
of the revalued leasehold land has been assessed at Rs.400 million ( 2022: Rs.320 million )

Amortisation charge for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by using straight
line method over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under
administrative expenses.

Had there been no revaluation, book value of leasehold land would have been Rs.25.441

million as at June 30, 2023; ( 2022: Rs.26.114 million )
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2023 2022
Note

Cost

Balance at year-end 14,808              14,808              

Amortisation

Opening balance 12,094
              

9,132
                

Amortised during the year 1,235
                

2,962
                

13,329
              

12,094
              

Carrying value at year-end 1,479
                

2,714
                

7.1

8. INVESTMENTS - At cost

Wholly owned Subsidiary Companies

A-One Prefabs (Pvt.) Ltd. (APL)
2,497 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8.1 0

                       

25

                     

Awal Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. (AEL)
2,497 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8.2 0

                       

25

                     

A-One Batteries (Pvt.) Ltd. (ABL)
2,497 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8.3 0

                       

25

                     

0

                       

75

                     

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9. LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Considered good

2023 2022
Security deposits against: Note

- utility bills 9.1 64,873

              

64,873

              

- rented premises 1,734

                

1,734

                

- Ijarah finance facilities 586

                   

586

                   

67,193

              

67,193

              

9.1

10. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 53,996

              

34,928

              

Spare parts 259,487

            

211,467

            

Loose tools 362

                   

359

                   

313,845

            

246,754

            

APL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 18, 2020 under the
Companies Act, 2017.

AEL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 18, 2020 under the
Companies Act, 2017. 

Rupees in thousand

Amortisation has been charged at the rate of 20% of cost and has been allocated to
administrative expenses. 

ABL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 29, 2020 under the
Companies Act, 2017. 

These investments, during the year, have been sold against consideration of Rs.225
thousand to three directors of the Company.

These deposits are being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date; therefore,
have been carried at cost, as amortised cost is impractical to determine.

Rupees in thousand
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2023 2022

11. STOCK IN TRADE

Finished goods - industrial gases 64,057              41,063              

                          - industrial chemicals 15,318              10,489              

Carrying value of stock in trade

  with and into the Company 0
                       

83,708
              

79,375
              

135,260
            

12. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured

Considered good 1,020,529
         

1,038,599
         

Considered doubtful 19,856
              

16,027
              

1,040,385

         

1,054,626

         

Allowance for expected credit loss (19,856)

             

(16,027)

             

1,020,529

         

1,038,599

         

 - elimination of receivable from GTECH 
      upon merger 0

                       

(89,460)

             

 - balance transferred to Loans and Advances
      upon merger 0

                       

(136,766)

           

Add: carrying value of trade debts

         with and into the Company 0

                       

12,600

              

1,020,529

         

824,973

            

12.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance 16,027

              

26,960

              

Charge for the year 4,337

                

6,381

                

Balances written-off during the year (508)

                  

(17,314)

             

Closing balance 19,856

              

16,027

              

12.2

Up to 1 month 122,244

            

130,254

            

31 to 60 days 42,182

              

44,242

              

61 to 90 days 37,449

              

32,119

              

91 to 180 days 51,121

              

75,379

              

181 to 365 days 74,900

              

43,337

              

Above 365 days 68,173

              

88,034

              

396,069

            

413,365

            

Rupees in thousand

  acquired upon merger of GTECH

Less:

         acquired upon merger of GTECH

Trade debts aggregating Rs.396.069 million ( 2022: Rs.413.365 million) were either past due
or overdue but not impaired as allowance for expected credit loss. These balances relate to
various customers, primarily Government organisations, with whom there was no recent
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:
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12.3

2023 2022

Note

13. LOAN AND ADVANCES 
    Unsecured, considered good

  - to employees against expenses 4,853
                

3,734
                

  - to employees against salaries 92
                     

97
                     

  - to suppliers and contractors 205,691
            

195,373
            

Due from related parties 13.1 866,331
            

272,164
            

Letters of credit 506,673
            

15,044
              

1,583,640
         

486,412
            

Allowance for impairment (1,485)

               

(1,485)

               

1,582,155

         

484,927

            

Balances transferred from GTECH upon merger:

  - advances to employees 0

                       

63

                     

  - advances against purchase of vehicles 0

                       

184,488

            

  - advances against long term assets 0

                       

2,856

                

  - due from Ghani Global Glass

       Ltd. (GGGL) 13.5 0

                       

136,766

            

  - Others 0

                       

122

                   

1,582,155

         

809,222

            

13.1 Due from related parties

Ghani Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

806

                   

Ghani Products (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

3,288

                

Ghani Global Foods Ltd. 0

                       

424

                   

Air Ghani (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

237

                   

A One Prefabs (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

25

                     

A One Batteries (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

25

                     

Awal Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. 0

                       

25

                     

Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd. 0

                       

2,222

                

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. 13.2 866,059

            

265,112

            

Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. 272

                   

0

                       

866,331

            

272,164

            

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Rupees in thousand

Maximum amount due from the Holding Company at the end of any month during the year

was Rs.0.272 million ( 2022: Rs.22.908 million).

Maximum amounts due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year was
Rs.866.519 million (2022: Rs.274.791 million)

Receivables from the government institutions aggregate Rs.396.069 million as at June 30,
2023 ( 2022: Rs.413.365 million)

Advances to related parties carry return at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 150 bps. (2022: 3

months KIBOR + 85 bps) 

Balance due from GGGL as at June 30, 2022 amounting Rs.136.766 million grouped under
trade debts as at June 30, 2022 in the financial statements of GTECH has been reclassified
and grouped under loans and advances in the current year's financial statements.
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14. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 2023 2022

OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Trade deposits 143,597            139,912            

Prepayments 9,512                7,372                

Bank guarantee margins 0                       4,364                

Bank profit receivable 4,244
                

0
                       

Letters of credit margins 0
                       

266,050
            

Other receivable 286,217
            

0
                       

443,570
            

417,698
            

Balance transferred from GTECH upon merger:

 - profit receivable on term deposit receipts 0
                       

15,707
              

443,570

            

433,405

            

15. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable - net 34,230

              

0

                       

Balance transferred from GTECH upon merger:
 - sales tax refundable - net 0

                       

23,861

              

34,230

              

23,861

              

16. ADVANCE INCOME TAX

Opening balance 417,798

            

427,550

            

Paid during the year 245,881

            

222,600

            

Refunds received during the year 0

                       

(75,665)

             

663,679

            

574,485

            

Adjusted against income tax payable (223,648)

           

(167,000)

           

440,031

            

407,485

            

Balance of advance tax transferred 

 to GCIL upon merger of GTECH 0

                       

10,313

              

Closing balance 440,031

            

417,798

            

17.

Term deposits receipts (TDRs) 911,000

            

0

                       

Balance transferred from GTECH upon merger:

 - TDRs 0

                       

659,000

            

911,000

            

659,000

            

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand 392

                   

367

                   

Cash at banks on:
- current accounts 233,583

            

139,819

            

- deposit accounts 18.1 291,198

            

359,677

            

524,781

            

499,496

            

Balances transferred from GTECH upon merger:

- current accounts 0

                       

666

                   

- deposit accounts 0

                       

354,639

            

525,173

            

855,168

            

Rupees in thousand

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

74 Annual Report 2023Ghani Chemical Industries Limited



18.1

2023 2022

19. ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE Note

Leasehold land classified 
as held-for-sale 5.3 0

                       
               52,250 

39,800,000 shares of G3 Technologies Ltd.
 classified as held-for-sale 
 as at April 09,2022 8 0

                       
             401,637 

Less: 20,000,000 shares sold on April 19, 2022 0
                       

           (200,200)

                        0              201,437 

Investments in an Associated Company held 

 by GTECH classified as held-for-sale  0              425,192 

0              678,879 

20. SHARE CAPITAL

20.1 Authorised share capital

800,000,000 ( 2022: 550,000,000) ordinary 

shares oRf s.10 each 20.3 8,000,000

         

5,500,000

         

50,000,000 Class B shares of Rs.10 each 500,000

            

0

                       

8,500,000

         

5,500,000

         

20.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

53,525,000 ( 2022: 53,525,000) ordinary 
shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 535,250

            

535,250

            

100,000,000 ( 2022: 100,000,000) ordinary 
shares of Rs.10 each issued for consideration 
other than cash i.e. Scheme of Arrangement 1,000,000

         

1,000,000

 

10,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000) ordinary shares

  issued as right shares of Rs.10 each 

  fully paid  in cash 100,000

            

100,000

 

20.4 2,397,016

         

1,962,300

         

749,613

            

749,613

            

22,000,000 Class B shares of Rs.10 each 20.5 220,000

            

0

                       

5,001,879

         

4,347,163

         

74,961,338 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued upon merger of GTECH with and

into the Company

239,701,600 (2022:196,230,000) ordinary

shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid

bonus shares

Rupees in thousand

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.97% to 17.08% ( 2022: 2.75% to 8.50%) per
annum.
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20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6 Shares held by related parties 2023 2022

Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. 279,905,983

      

251,459,985

      

Ghani Products (Pvt.) Ltd. 86,631,490

       

78,755,900

       

366,537,473

      

330,215,885

      

21. SHARE PREMIUM 2023 2022

Note

             300,000 0

0

                       

913,951

            

Premium originated during the preceding year 

    upon issuance of 10 million ordinary shares 

    at premium of Rs.30 per share 0

                       

300,000

            

Less: premium utilised during the year 

    upon issuance of 434,716,338 
(2022: 196,230,000)  bonus shares (135,989) (913,951)

           

Balance as at June 30, 164,011

            

300,000

            

22. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON FREEHOLD 

  AND LEASEHOLD LAND 

Opening balance 298,727 0

Surplus on revaluations carried-out during the year 497,278

            

1,329,495

         

Less: surplus utilised during the year
     upon issuance of 434,716,338

(2022:196,230,000) bonus shares (298,727) (1,030,768)

        

Balance as at June 30, 497,278

            

298,727

            

Opening balance 

 Share premium originated upon issuance

   Global Holdings Ltd.

The authorised share capital of the Company, during the year, has been increased from
Rs.5.500 billion divided into 550,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each to Rs.8.500 billion
divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and 50,000,000 Class B shares of
Rs.10 each.

   of 100 million ordinary shares to Ghani

Rs. in thousand

(Number of Shares)

The Company, during the year, has issued 43,471,634 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each as
fully paid bonus shares in the proportion of 10 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares
held. 

The Company, during the year, has issued 22,000,000 class B shares at the rate of Rs.10
per share. This right issue has been made at the rate of 8.8045 class B shares for every 100
existing ordinary shares.
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2023 2022

23. LONG TERM FINANCES Note

From banking companies - secured

Diminishing Musharakah 23.2 1,279 3,103                

Diminishing Musharakah 23.3 750 13,014              

Diminishing Musharakah 23.4 245,440
 

354,525
            

Diminishing Musharakah and
  Islamic Refinance Facility 23.5 11,429

 
39,186

              

Diminishing Musharakah (ITERF) 23.6 395,835
 

438,981
            

Long Term Islamic Finance Facility 23.7 283,176
 

0
                       

Diminishing Musharakah 23.8 499,993
 

0
                       

From Islamic Financial Institution - secured

Diminishing Musharakah 23.9 4,029

 

9,504

                

Others

From sponsoring directors - unsecured 23.10 52,000

              

52,000

              

          1,493,931 910,313

            

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (223,888)

           

(154,102)

           

1,270,043

         

756,211

            

23.1 Balance at beginning of the year 910,313

            

             744,657 

Availed during the year 783,169

            

             336,443 

Repayments made during the year (174,696)

           

           (170,787)

Balance at the end of the year           1,518,786              910,313 

23.2

23.3

23.4

Rs. in thousand

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.450 million (2022:
Rs.450 million) availed from a banking company to finance machinery and equipment; the
facility tenor is 5 years including 1 year grace period. The balance is repayable in 16 equal
quarterly instalments and carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1%. The facility is
secured against pari passu charge with 25% margin aggregating Rs.600 million over all
plant and machinery of the Company. The banking company has allowed moratorium of one
year under SBP BPRD circular no. 13/2020; accordingly, repayment has commenced from
October, 2021.

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facilities having credit limit of Rs.5.987 million
(2022: Rs.5.987 million) and Rs.37.711 million ( 2022: Rs.37.711) million availed from a
banking company to finance machinery & equipment. The facilities are available upto July,
2022 and May, 2023 respectively. The facilities carry profit at the rate of 1 year KIBOR +
0.80% and 6 months KIBOR + 0.80% respectively. These facilities are secured against first
pari passu charge of Rs.110 million over fixed assets, first specific charge of Rs.17.500
million over imported assets and equitable mortgage over land and buildings. These facilities
have been matured during the current year and the management is negotiating with the
bank for final settlement. 

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.10 million availed
from a banking company for purchase of vehicles. The agreement tenor is 3 years and the
balance is repayable in 36 instalments ending June, 2024. It carries profit at the rate of 3
months KIBOR + 1% and is secured against ownership of Musharakah assets jointly in the
bank's and customer's name.
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23.5 Diminishing Musharakah and Islamic refinance facility

2023 2022

Opening balance 39,186              84,392              

Payment made during the year (28,080)             (47,059)             

Deferred income 323
                   

1,853
                

11,429
              

39,186
              

23.6

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

23.7

Rupees in thousand

This represents Diminishing Musharakah and Islamic refinance facility having credit limit of
Rs.110 million under Islamic Refinance Scheme for payment of salaries and wages to
workers and employees of the Company to dampen the effect of Covid-19 for a period of 2.5
years including six months grace period. The outstanding balance of salary finance has
been fully repaid during the year. The year end balance represents Diminishing Musharakah
facility to retire letter of credit of Oxy Fuel Plant and carries profit at the rate of 6 months
KIBOR + 1%. The facility will be fully repaid by July, 2024.The repayment of salary loan has
been made in 8 equal quarterly instalments after a grace period and commenced from
January, 2021. It carried profit at the rate of 3%. The facility is secured against first pari
passu charge of Rs.96 million over plant & machinery and personal guarantees of three
sponsoring Directors of the Company. 

As the above finances are below market rate of mark-up, these have been initially measured
at their fair value i.e. the present value of the future cash flows discounted at prevailing
market mark-up rate . The difference between the fair value of the finances on initial
recognition and the amount received has been accounted for as Government grant.

The Company, during the year, has recorded Rs.33.679 million as Government grant on
finances obtained at below market rate of mark-up as per the requirements of IAS 20
(Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government assistance).

The Company has adhered to the terms of the grant; hence, this has been amortised at
average borrowing cost rate of the Company, i.e. 7.35% per annum. An amount of Rs.8.824
million has been recognised in the current's year statement of profit or loss in this regard
and this amount has been adjusted against finance cost for the year.

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.439 million under
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) ITERF Scheme to finance capital expenditure requirements
related to procuring Gaseous Air Separation Unit (ASU); draw down has been allowed in
multiple tranches. The facility tenor is 8 years including 2 years grace period; repayment will
be made in 24 quarterly instalments and commenced from May, 2023. It carries profit at
SBP rate + 4% per annum. The facility is secured against exclusive charge over operating
fixed assets (excluding land and buildings) of the new unit for Rs.625 million, first pari passu
charge of Rs.625 million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company, personal
guarantees of sponsoring directors of the Company and assignment of receivables.

This Long Term Islamic Finance Facility (LTIFF) has been obtained during the year from a
banking company. The facility has a credit limit of Rs.500 million and has been obtained to
meet CAPEX requirements of the Company; the facility tenor is 6 years including one year
grace period. The balance is repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments ending December,
2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.50%. The facility is secured against
first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs.667 million over all present and future fixed
assets of the Company inclusive of 25% margin.
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23.8

23.9

23.10

24. REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - Sukuk
2023 2022

Long term certificates 162,500

            

379,167

            

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (162,500)

           

(216,667)

           

0

                       

162,500

            

24.1

25. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS 

These security deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the business in accordance
with written agreements. These represent amounts received from the customers on
installation of certain equipment and may be used in ordinary course of the Company's
business under the provisions of section 217 of the Company's Act, 2017.

Rupees in thousand

The Company had issued rated, privately placed and secured long term Islamic Certificates
(Sukuk) as instrument of redeemable capital under section 120 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) amounting Rs.1,300 million divided into
13,000 certificates of Rs.100,000 each for a period of 6 years under an agreement
dated November 15, 2016 for swapping of financing facilities and to meet business
requirements. These certificates are redeemable in 24 consecutive quarterly instalments
commenced from February 03, 2017 and ending on February 03, 2024. Rentals are payable
on quarterly basis along with redemption of certificates. These carry profit rate of 3 months
KIBOR plus 1%. These certificates are secured against first pari passu charge over present
and future fixed assets of the Company to the extent of Rs.1,625 million. The banking
company had allowed moratorium of one year; consequently, repayment of instalments for
the months of May, 2020 to February, 2021  were deferred for one year.

These Islamic finance facilities carry profit at the rates ranging from 6 months KIBOR + 1%
to 3 months KIBOR + 1.25% (2022: 6 months KIBOR + 1% to 3 months KIBOR + 1.25%).
These Islamic finance facilities having credit limit of Rs.51.275 million (2022: Rs.51.275
million) are secured against ownership of Musharakah assets in favour of a financial
institution. These finance facilities are repayable in monthly instalments ending July, 2024.
These finance facilities are secured against ranking charge over plant & machinery,
ownership of vehicles in the name of financial institution and personal guarantees of the
Directors.

These loans have been provided by sponsoring Directors to meet capital expenditure
requirements of the Company and are repayable after 5 years at the discretion of the
lenders. Profit rates on these loans range from 1 month KIBOR and profit is payable on
monthly basis. 

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility obtained during the year having credit limit
of Rs.500 million. The facility has been availed from a banking company to finance project at
Hattar for setting up an additional manufacturing plant of medical and industrial gases; the
facility tenor is six years including 1.5 years grace period. The balance is repayable in 18
equal quarterly instalments ending December, 2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR + 0.90%. The facility is secured against first pari passu / joint pari passu charge over
all existing and future fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and personal
guarantees of three sponsoring directors.
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2023 2022

26. LEASE LIABILITIES Note

Lease liabilities                  6,121                  6,040 

Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities                     316                     301 

                 5,805                  5,739 

26.1 Movement of lease liabilities

Balance at beginning of the year                  6,040                  5,548 

Lease reassessment 0
                       

                    283 

Interest charge for the year                     513                     496 

Payment made during the year                   (432)                   (287)

Balance at end of the year                  6,121                  6,040 

Maturity analysis of undiscounted 

lease payments 

Payable upto one year                     316                     301 

Payable between one to five years                  1,832                  1,745 

Payable after five years                28,126                28,526 

               30,274                30,572 

26.2

27. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Gas infrastructure development cess 27.1 7,991

                

11,846

              

Deferred income - Government grant 27.2 17,369

              

0

                       

Deferred taxation 27.4 637,455

            

444,468

            

662,815

            

456,314

            

27.1 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)

Balance at  year-end 20,578

              

19,098

              

Interest against provision for GIDC 1,106

                

1,480

                

Closing liability based on present value 21,684

              

20,578

              

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (13,693)

             

(8,732)

               

7,991

                

11,846

              

Rs. in thousand

Amortisation for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by straight line method
over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under administrative
expenses. Right of use assets represent leasehold land, which is located at 53 - A,
Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 kanals having covered area of
217,800  sq. ft.

The Company had recorded provision for GIDC, which was grouped under trade and other
payables during the financial year ended June 30, 2020. This amount was classified as non-
current liability at its value, by discounting future estimated cash flows using risk free rate of
return i.e. 8.60%. This resulted in income of Rs.3.540 million, which was grouped in other
income during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), during the financial year ended June 30, 2021, had
decided the appeal against consumers upholding the vires of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 through its judgment dated August 13, 2020. The
review petition was filed against the judgment, wherein the SCP provided some relief by
increasing the time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 instalments to 48 instalments. The
review application, however, was dismissed.

The Company has filed a constitutional petition before the Lahore High Court (LHC)
challenging the imposition of GIDC amount of Rs.22.638 million. The order of the writ
petition was not in favour of the Company, which was challenged in ICA before the LHC.
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2023 2022
27.2 Deferred income - Government grant Note

Balance at beginning of the year 27.3 323                   2,176                

Amortised during the year (323)                  (1,853)               

0
                       

323
                   

Government grant recognised 
  during the year 23.6 33,679

              
0

                       

Amortised during the year 23.6 (8,824)
               

0
                       

24,855

              

0

                       

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (7,486)

               

(323)

                  

17,369

              

0

                       

27.3

27.4 Deferred taxation

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of
accelerated tax depreciation allowances 861,808

            

782,628

            

Deductible temporary differences arising 
in respect of:

- unused tax losses (19,989)

             

(135,101)

           

- allowance for expected credit loss (5,758)

               

(4,648)

               

- alternate corporate tax / minimum tax recoverable
against normal tax charge in future years (198,605)

           

(198,411)

           

(224,352)

           

(338,160)

           

637,456

            

444,468

            

Rs. in thousand

In response to COVID-19, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through Circular No. 6 of 2020,
has introduced a Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and
employees of business concerns. The Refinance Scheme has been managed through
Participating Financial Institutions (PFIs) and funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained loans from
PFIs to ease their cash flow constraints and thereby avoid layoffs. The benefit of a
government loan at a below-market rate of interest has been treated as a government grant.
The loan has been measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments). The
benefit of the below market rate of interest has been measured as the difference between
the initial carrying value of loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds
received. The benefit has been accounted for and presented as deferred grant in
accordance with IAS 20. The deferred grant has been amortised at average borrowing cost
rate of the Company, i.e. 8.50% ( 2022:8.50%) per annum; an amount of Rs.323 thousand (
2022: Rs.1,853 thousand) has been recognised in the current year statement of profit or loss 
in this regard.
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2023 2022

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note

Trade creditors 252,910            44,700              

Accrued liabilities 24,419              73,767              

Due to Ghani Global Holdings Ltd.
 (the Holding Company) 0

 
32,465

              

Due to G3 Technologies Ltd.

 (an Associated Company) 0
 

360,900
            

Sales tax payable 0
 

44,161
              

Workers' (profit) participation fund 28.1 18,328
 

50,382
              

Workers' welfare fund 28.2 46,764

 

36,591

              

Payable to employees' provident fund 13

                     

37

                     

Withholding income tax 7,662

                

3,431

                

350,096

            

646,434

            

Balances transferred from GTECH upon merger:

 - trade creditors 0

                       

89,860

              

 - accrued liabilities 0

                       

1,694

                

 - zakat payable 0

                       

301

                   

0

                       

1,489

                

 - elimination of intercompany balances:

     payable by GTECH 0

                       

(89,459)

             

     payable by GCIL 0

                       

(360,900)

           

350,096

            

289,419

            

28.1 Workers' (profit) participation fund

Opening balance  50,382

              

36,764

              

Paid during the year (82,088)

             

(48,738)

             

Allocation for the year 50,034

              

62,356

              

Closing balance  18,328

              

50,382

              

28.2 Workers' welfare fund

Opening balance 36,591

              

19,625

              

Adjusted during the year (8,840)

               

(6,730)

               

Charge for the year 19,013

              

23,696

              

Closing balance 46,764

              

36,591

              

29. ACCRUED PROFIT

Profit accrued on :

 - long term finances 65,485

              

28,865

              

 - redeemable capital - Sukuk 6,148

                

9,533

                

 - short term borrowings 51,154

              

44,800

              

122,787

            

83,198

              

Rs. in thousand

 - withholding income tax

Less:
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83

2023 2022

Note

30. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured 1,127,439         1,351,927         

Temporary book overdraft - unsecured 30.2 0
                       12,637

              

1,127,439
         

1,364,564
         

30.1

30.2

31. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Long term finances 23 223,888

            

154,102

            

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 24 162,500

            

216,667

            

Lease liabilities 26 316

                   

301

                   

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 27.1 13,693

              

8,732

                

Deferred income 27.2 7,486

                

323

                   

407,883

            

380,125

            

32.

Provision for taxation of the Company as at June 30, 241,470

            

228,781

            

Balance transferred from GTECH upon merger 0

                       

5,576

                

241,470

            

234,357

            

33. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

33.1

33.2 During the financial year ended June 30, 2020, the Company has filed a writ petition before
the Sindh High Court, Karachi against Federation of Pakistan owing to dispute between K-
Electric regarding origination bill including amount of Rs.35.858 million in lieu of Industrial
Support Package (ISPA). As per order of the Sindh High Court dated May 05, 2020; the
Company has submitted post-dated cheques of the involved amount to the Court for further
proceeding of the matter. The management is of the view that the case will be decided in
favour of the Company.

The Company has filed two separate constitutional petitions on February 15, 2009 before
the Lahore High Court (the LHC), Lahore on the ground that the Company was not required
to pay any advance tax on electricity bills due to huge carried forward tax losses and
available refunds. The LHC has granted stay orders upon furnishing of bank guarantees in
favour of LESCO amounting Rs.3.140 million. The outcome of the cases is pending and the
management is hopeful that matter shall be decided in favour of the Company.

Rs. in thousand

TAXATION

These finances have been obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against joint
pari passu hypothecation charge on present and future current assets, personal guarantees
of sponsoring directors of the Company and corporate guarantees of the Holding Company.
These form part of total credit funded facilities of Rs.1,450 million (2022: Rs.1,815 million).
The rates of profit range from 11.58% to 23.88% (2022: 8.20% to 16.54%) per annum.
These facilities are expiring on various dates by January 31,  2024.

This temporary book overdraft had arisen due to issuance of cheques for amounts in excess
of balance in a bank account.
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33.3

33.4

33.5

Commitments

33.6

33.7

34. SALES Restated

2023 2022

Note

Gross sales - local

Supplies 5,052,441

         

4,743,782

         

Services 58,682

              

38,009

              

Adjustment arisen upon merger of GTECH 34.1 0

                       

28,035

              

5,111,123

         

4,809,826

         

Sales / service tax (778,927)

           

(591,065)

           

Adjustment arisen upon merger of GTECH 34.1 0

                       

(4,672)

               

(778,927)

           

(595,737)

           

Net sales 4,332,196

         

4,214,089

         

34.1

Bank guarantees aggregating Rs.133.670 million ( 2022: Rs.43.915 million) have been
provided to various customers / institutions against supplies of products.

The un-availed funded and unfunded credit facilities from banks (other than loans from
directors) as of reporting date were for Rs.403.840 million ( 2022: Rs.815.440 million).
These limits include credit lines that are interchangeable and may be utilised for either
funded facilities or unfunded facilities.

This represents sales pertaining to the period from January 01, 2022 to June 30, 2022,
which have been extracted from the reviewed financial statements of GTECH for the six
months period ended December 31, 2021 and audited financial statements of GTECH for
the year end June 30, 2022.

As per order of the Lahore High Court, GTECH was merged with and into the Company with
effect from December 31, 2021; however, the Court order was received during October,
2022.

As GTECH has not ceased its operations during the period from January 01, 2022 to
June 30, 2022, the aforementioned adjustments have been incorporated in these financial
statements.

The Department has filed references before the Lahore High Court against the orders
passed by the Appellate Tribunal in favour of the Company for the Tax Years 2011 and
2014.The references are pending adjudication.

Commitments in respect of letters of credit amounted to Rs.1,943.721 million (2022:
Rs.1,535.066 million).

Commitments for construction of buildings as at June 30, 2023 amounted Rs.200 million;
(2022:Rs.100 million).

Rupees in thousand
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Restated
2023 2022

35. COST OF SALES Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 35.1 101,093            70,857              

Fuel and power 1,742,201         1,509,497         

Utilities 6,919                4,835                

Consumable stores and spares 146,283            124,110            

Rent, rates and taxes 927                   1,324                

Repair and maintenance 6,747
                

12,285
              

Communication 606
                   

880
                   

Travelling and vehicles' running 8,731
                

6,662
                

Insurance 7,607
                

7,698
                

Depreciation 5.7 122,162
            

118,313
            

Inadmissible sales tax (input), freight and others 35,789
              

65,542
              

Cost of goods manufactured 2,179,065
         

1,922,003
         

Changes in finished goods

Opening stock:

 - GCIL 51,552
              

101,481
            

 - GTECH 83,708
              

0

Purchases 637,408

            

472,122

            

Closing stock 11 (79,375)

             

(51,552)

             

693,293

            

522,051

            

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1) 0 20,580

              

2,872,358

         

2,464,634

         

35.1

36. DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1 65,262

              

63,216

              

Transportation 84,144

              

192,406

            

Traveling, boarding, lodging and conveyance 1,581

                

3,091

                

Communication 432

                   

684

                   

Vehicles' running and maintenance 10,838

              

5,741

                

Rent, rates and taxes 4,560

                

4,921

                

Loading and unloading 702

                   

844

                   

Postage and courier 296

                   

273

                   

Repair and maintenance 206

                   

2,654

                

Office expenses 731

                   

699

                   

Others 24,673

              

29,438

              

193,425

            

303,967

            

36.1

Rupees in thousand

These include Rs.4.552 million (2022: Rs.4.200 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

These include Rs.4.937 million (2022: Rs.4.022 million) in respect of retirement benefits.
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Restated

2023 2022

37. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note

Salaries and other benefits 37.1 92,856              65,264              

Communication 1,542                1,333                

Electricity and other utilities 8,895                6,762                

Rent, rates and taxes 6,348
                6,137

                

Repair and maintenance 298
                   

937
                   

Traveling and conveyance 1,624
                

717
                   

Vehicles' running and maintenance 5,036
                

3,661
                

Printing and stationery 5,134
                

2,416
                

Donations and charity 2,273
                

3,273
                

Fees and subscription 18,858
              

24,239
              

Advertisement 35
                     

297
                   

Insurance 5,334
                

3,552
                

Depreciation 5.7 35,242

              

19,385

              

Amortisation of right of use assets 6 10,782

              

8,779

                

Amortisation of intangible assets 7 1,235

                

2,962

                

Others 20,131

              

13,580

              

215,623

            

163,294

            

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1) 0

                       

24,069

              

215,623

            

187,363

            

37.1

38. OTHER EXPENSES

Legal and professional (other than Auditors) 955

 

5,689

                

Allowance for expected credit loss 12.1 4,337

 

6,381

                

Loss on sale of held-for-sale investments 0

 

948

                   

Auditors' remuneration:

- statutory audit 858

                   

726

                   

-  special audit assignment 0

                       

577

                   

-  half yearly review 220

                   

0

                       

-  other certifications 285

                   

175

                   

1,363

                

1,478

                

Workers' welfare fund 28.2 19,013

              

23,696

              

Workers' (profit) participation fund 28.1 50,034

              

62,356

              

75,702

              

100,548

            

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1) 0

                       

5,804

                

75,702

              

106,352

            

Rupees in thousand

These include Rs.5.448 million (2022: Rs.4.997 million) in respect of retirement benefits.
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Restated

2023 2022

Note

39. OTHER INCOME

Profit on bank deposits 153,064
            

9,362
                

Return on advances to Associated Companies 115,444
            

11,044
              

Credit balances written back 0
                       

14,295
              

Advance against leasehold land at Hattar 0

                       

15,000

              

Gain on forward exchange contracts 0

                       

7,949

                

Gain on sale of investment in GTECH 12,361

              

0

                       

Gain on sale of long term investments 150

                   

0

                       

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 5.4 7,469

                

149,409

            

Indenting commission 0

                       

2,950

                

Takaful claim received 2,960

                

0

                       

Compensation charges recovered from Engro
  Polymer and Chemicals Ltd. due to
  short lifting of chemical supplies 39,255

              

0

                       

Miscellaneous 231

                   

1,821

                

330,934

            

211,830

            

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1) 0

                       

73,291

              

330,934

            

285,121

            

40. FINANCE COST

Finance cost on:

- long term finances 88,772

              

54,219

              

- redeemable capital - Sukuk 46,290

              

49,462

              

- short term borrowings 229,111

            

118,113

            

-  Interest against provision for Gas 
   Infrastructure and Development Cess 1,106

                

1,480

                

- mark-up on advances received 

  from an associated company 0

                       

1,988

                

- lease liabilities 513

                   

496

                   

Bank charges and commission 8,590

                

3,868

                

374,382

            

229,626

            

41. SHARE OF PROFIT OF ASSOCIATED COMPANY

GCIL 0

                       

2,844

                

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1) 0

                       

15,203

              

0

                       

18,047

              

Rupees in thousand
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Restated

2023 2022

42. TAXATION Note

Current

- for the year              239,653              228,781 

- prior years                (8,892)                (3,990)

             230,761              224,791 

Deferred     27.4              192,988              126,695 

             423,749              351,486 

Adjustment arisen upon merger 

  of GTECH (note 34.1)                         0                  3,380 

             423,749              354,866 

42.1

42.2

43. EARNINGS PER SHARE Restated

There is no dilutive effect on earnings 2023 2022
per share of the Company, which is based on:

Profit after taxation attributable to 

     ordinary shareholders 507,891

            

870,449

            

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Restated

in issue during the year 478,187,972

      

423,861,693

      

Restated

Earnings per share - basic 1.06

                  

2.05

                  

44. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, allowances
including all benefits to the chief executive, directors and executives of the Company were
as follows:

Rupees in thousand

---------- Rupees ----------

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the
Company for the current and preceding year is mainly liable to pay tax due under sections
4C (Super tax on high earning persons) and 113C (Alternative Corporate Tax) of the
Ordinance.

(Number of shares)

Returns filed by the Company upto the tax year 2022 have been assessed under the self
assessment scheme envisaged in section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance).

Rupees in thousand

Description

Managerial remuneration 17,408      17,408    24,887        17,408     21,008   30,889       

Medical 696           1,741      995             696          1,885     1,236         

Provident fund contribution 1,450        1,450      2,073          1,450       1,750     2,573         

19,554      20,599    27,955        19,554     24,643   34,698       

No. of persons 1 1 8 1 2 10

2023 2022

---------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------------------

Chief 

Executive
Directors Executives

Chief 
Executive

Directors Executives
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44.1

44.2

45. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name of related party Relationship

- Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. Parent Company 

- Ghani Global Glass Ltd. Associated Company - common directorship

- Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd. -do-

- Air Ghani  (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- Ghani Global Foods (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- Ghani Products (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- Ghani Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- A-One Prefabs (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- Awal Engineering (Pvt) Ltd. -do-

- A-One Batteries (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-

- Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan Director/ shareholder

- Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan -do-

- Hafiz Farooq Ahmad -do-

- Provident Fund Trust Employees' retirement fund

45.1 Transactions with related parties

2023 2022

Holding Company Commission against 
corporate guarantees 3,958

                

2,744

                

Return on advances given 0

                       

387

                   

Purchases 19,099

              

54,925

              

Associated Company

- Ghani Global Glass Ltd.
Sales 192,743

            

110,250

            

Sale of fixed assets 0

                       

116,401

            

Return on advances given 114,858

            

6,768

                

Return on advances 0

                       

1,988

                

Expenses shared 496,316

            

470,723

            

Other Associated Companies

Return on advances given 586

                   

3,889

                

Key management personnel (directors)

Sale of vehicle 0

                       

30,000

              

Sale of investment 75

                     

0

                       

Employees' provident fund trust
Contribution paid 29,875

              

26,436

              

 Nature of transaction Rupees in thousand

No meeting fee was paid to the directors for attending Board meetings during the current

and preceding years.

Related parties comprise of Holding, Subsidiary and Associated Companies, directors of the
Company, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. The Company in
the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Details of
related parties with whom the Company has transacted along with relationship and
transactions, other than those which have been disclosed in these financial statements,
were as follows:

The chief executive and directors of the Company have been provided with free use of
Company maintained cars in accordance with their entitlement. Some of the executives have 
also been provided with the Company maintained cars as per their terms of employment.

Relationship with related 

party
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category Restated

2023 2022
Financial assets
At amortised cost

Long term deposits 67,193 67,193

Trade debts 1,040,385 1,054,626

Trade deposits, bank profit and other receivables 143,597 144,276

Bank balances 524,781 854,801

1,775,956 2,120,896

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

Long term finances 1,493,931 910,313

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 162,500 379,167

Long term security deposits 49,091 44,266

Lease liabilities 6,121 6,040

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 21,684 20,578

Trade and other payables 277,329 118,466

Accrued profit 122,787 83,198

Short term borrowings 1,127,439 1,364,564

3,260,882 2,926,592

46.1 Financial Risk Factors

46.2 Market risk

(a) Currency risk

(b) Profit rate risk

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Company's finance department evaluates financial
risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity, provided by the board of directors.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks:
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to currency risk on
import of stores & spares and stock-in-trade mainly denominated in U.S. $. The Company is
not exposed to foreign currency risk as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 as it has no
foreign currency funded financial instrument at the respective reporting dates. 

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market profit rates. At the reporting date, the profit rate
profile of the Company's profit bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Rupees in thousand
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

(c) Price risk

46.3 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit
risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not affect
profit or loss of the Company.

At June 30, 2023, if profit rate on variable rate financial liabilities had been 1% higher / lower
with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been
lower / higher by Rs.27.900 million ( 2022: Rs.26.474 million) mainly as a result of higher
profit rates.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

2023 2022 2023 2022

Fixed rate instruments

Cash at banks on

deposit accounts 5.97% to 17.08% 2.75% to 8.5% 291,198 714,316

Variable rate instruments

Long term finances

1,493,931 910,313

Redeemable capital - Sukuk

162,500 379,167

Lease liabilities 8.50 to 8.85% 8.50 to 8.85% 6,121 6,040

Short term borrowings 11.58% to 23.88% 8.20% to 16.54% 1,127,439 1,351,927

3 months KIBOR + 

1%

3 months KIBOR + 

1%

Effective rates per annum Carrying amount

Rupees in thousand

SBP rate + 3 

months to 1 year 

KIBOR + 1%

SBP rate + 3 

months to  1    

year KIBOR +    

1%
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Exposure to credit risk

Restated

2023 2022

Long term deposits 67,193 67,193

Trade debts 1,040,385 1,054,626

Trade deposits, bank profit and other receivables 143,597 144,276

Bank balances 524,781 854,801

1,775,956 2,120,896

Rupees in thousand

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage exposure
to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into
account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where
considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. The
management has set a maximum credit period of 30 days to reduce the credit risk. Credit
risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings.

In respect of other counter parties, due to the Company's long standing business
relationship with them, management does not expect non-performance by these counter
parties on their obligations to the Company.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is
tabulated below:

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high

credit ratings.

Out of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and balances with
banks as they constitute 88% ( 2022: 89%) of the total financial assets. The Company's
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts other than Government parties is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company establishes an
allowance for expected credit loss that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect
of trade debts except for Government parties.

Trade debts are mainly due from local customers against sale of medical & industrial gases
and chemicals. Sales to the Company’s customers are made on specific terms and
conditions. Customers' credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the
Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customers' credit risk
management. Credit limits have been established for all customers based on internal rating
criteria. Credit quality of the customers is also assessed based on an extensive credit rating.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Trade debts of the Company are not exposed to significant credit risk as the Company
trades with credit worthy customers. Trade debts except for Government parties aggregating

Rs.681.812 million ( 2022: Rs.641.261 million) are past due of which Rs.19.856 million
(2022: Rs.16.027 million) have been impaired. Required allowance as determined by
management as per IFRS 9 - 'Financial instruments - recognition and measurement' has
been made in these financial statements.
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Bank balances 

Liquidity risk

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external

credit ratings assigned to them as follows :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of
adequate credit facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

2023 2022

Short term Long term

Bank Alfalah Ltd. A1+ AA+ PACRA 63,199                1,467                

The Bank of Punjab  A1+ AA+ PACRA 168                     1,029                

Allied Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 333                     4,042                

Askari Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA+ PACRA 118,341              90,353              

BankIslami Pakistan Ltd.  A1 A+ PACRA 772                     3,490                

Dubai Islamic Bank 

    (Pakistan) Ltd. A-1+ AA VIS 0 70                     

Faysal Bank Ltd. A1+ AA PACRA 1,383                  440                   

JS Bank Ltd.  A-1+ AA- PACRA 515                     108                   

National Bank of Pakistan  A-1+ AAA VIS 42,208                 40,075              

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA+ PACRA 206,576              272,980            

MCB Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 12                       12                     

Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.  A1 A PACRA 3,343                  11,513              

Habib Bank Ltd.  A-1+ AAA VIS 12,930                51,287              

Meezan Bank Ltd.  A-1+ AAA VIS 71,131                18,596              

Soneri Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA- PACRA 2,252                  3,976                

Bank Al Habib Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 1,517                  9                       

The Bank of Khyber A1 A PACRA 101                     49                     

524,781              499,496            

Balances of GTECH:

The Bank of Punjab 0 4,431

Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd. 0 47,099

Bank Alfalah Ltd. 0 302,371

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd. 0 741

Habib Bank Ltd. 0 663

524,781              854,801            

Rating Rating 

agency Rupees in thousand
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The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on
the basis of profit rates effective at the respective reporting dates. The rates of profit have
been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Particulars
Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Less than

1 year

Between

1 and 5

years 

More than 5 years 

Year ended June 30, 2023

Long term finances         1,493,931 1,242,696                          320,449                  922,247                             0 
Redeemable capital - Sukuk            162,500             181,390                  181,390                             0                             0 
Long term security deposits              49,091               49,091                             0                    49,091                             0 
Lease liabilities                6,121               30,274                         316                      1,832                    28,126 
Gas Infrastructure 

Development Cess              21,684               22,638                    16,978                      5,660                             0 
Trade and other payables            277,329             277,329                  277,329                             0                             0 
Accrued profit            122,787             122,787                  122,787                             0                             0 
Short term borrowings         1,127,439          1,376,008               1,376,008                             0                             0 

3,260,882        3,302,213         2,295,257              978,830                 28,126                   

Year ended June 30, 2022

Long term finances            910,313             874,605                  198,233                  237,391                  438,981 
Redeemable capital - Sukuk            379,167             438,715                  263,395                  175,320                             0 
Long term security deposits              44,266               44,266                             0                    44,266                             0 
Lease liabilities                6,040               30,572                         301                      1,745                    28,526 
Gas Infrastructure 

Development Cess              20,578               22,638                    11,319                    11,319                             0 
Trade and other payables            118,466             118,466                  118,466                             0                             0 

Accrued profit              83,198               83,198                    83,198                             0                             0 

Short term borrowings         1,364,564          1,536,724               1,536,724                             0                             0 

2,926,592        3,149,184         2,211,636              470,041                 467,507                 

  ------------------------------------ Rupees in thousand ---------------------------------- 
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47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Restated

2023 2022

Total debt 2,789,991 2,660,084

Cash and bank balances (525,173)

           

(855,168)

           

Net debt 2,264,818 1,804,916

Share capital 5,001,879 4,347,163

Share premium 164,011 300,000

Revaluation surplus on   
   freehold land and leasehold land 497,278 298,727

Merger reserve 1,342,746 1,342,746

Unappropriated profit 1,824,044 1,316,153

Equity 8,829,958 7,604,789

Capital 11,094,776 9,409,705

Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 20.41% 19.18%

48. SEGMENT REPORTING

48.1

a) Industrial Chemicals

b) Industrial and Medical Gases

This segment covers business with large-scale industrial consumers, typically in the oil,
chemical, food and beverage, metal, glass sectors and medical customers in healthcare
sectors. Gases and services are supplied as part of customer specific solutions and range
from supply by road tankers in liquefied form. Gases for cutting and welding, hospital,
laboratory applications and a variety of medical purposes are also distributed under pressure 
in cylinders.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company also monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt comprising of profit bearing long term & short term finances and lease
liabilities less cash & bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of
financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 is
as follows:

The Company has following two strategic divisions which are its reportable segments.
Following summary describes the operations of each reportable segments:

Rupees in thousand

This segment covers business of trading of chemicals.

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained
development of its business.
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48.2

48.3

48.4

48.5

Transfers between business segments are recorded at cost. There were no inter segment
transfers during the year.

One (2022: Nil) of the Company's customers having sales aggregating Rs.1,334,526
thousand contributed towards 26.11% of the Company's gross sales. 

Segment results were as follows:

All the non-current assets of the Company at the reporting date were located within
Pakistan. Depreciation expense mainly relates to industrial and medical gases segment. 

Industrial 

and Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Industrial 

and Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Net sales 3,484,521    847,675      4,332,196         3,655,555    558,534      4,214,089      

Cost of sales (2,161,144)   (711,214)     (2,872,358)        (1,964,711)   (499,923)     (2,464,634)     

Gross profit 1,323,377    136,461      1,459,838         1,690,844    58,611        1,749,455      

Distribution cost (187,622)      (5,803)         (193,425)           (294,848)      (9,119)         (303,967)        

Administrative expenses (204,842)      (10,781)       (215,623)           (179,198)      (8,165)         (187,363)        

(392,464)      (16,584)       (409,048)           (474,046)      (17,284)       (491,330)        

Segment profit 930,913       119,877      1,050,790         1,216,798    41,327        1,258,125      

Unallocated corporate expenses

Other expenses (75,702)             (106,352)        

Other income 330,934            285,121         

1,306,022         1,436,894      

Finance cost (374,382)           (229,626)        

Share of profit from Associate 0                       18,047           

Profit before taxation 931,640            1,225,315      

Taxation (423,749)           (354,866)        

Profit after taxation 507,891            870,449         

Industrial and 

Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Industrial and 

Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Segment assets        9,716,828           55,031             9,771,859        8,139,512         127,999         8,267,511 

Unallocated assets             3,355,764         3,168,144 

Total assets           13,127,623       11,435,655 

Segment liabilities        1,996,996             3,554             2,000,550        2,209,940             4,535         2,214,475 

Unallocated liabilities             2,297,115         1,616,391 

Total liabilities             4,297,665         3,830,866 

------------------------------------ Y ear ended ------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------ Rupees in thousand -------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand -------------------------------------------------

Year ended June 30, 2023 Year ended June 30, 2022

The segment assets and liabilities at the reporting date for the year-end were as follows:

As at June 30, 2023 As at June 30, 2022
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49. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2023 2022

Industrial and medical gases

Production at normal capacity - gross 98,846,964
       

78,897,955
       

Production at normal capacity - net of normal losses 90,939,207
       

72,713,628
       

Actual production - net of normal losses 58,483,480
       

59,318,060
       

Efficiency achieved 64% 82%

49.1 Under-utilisation

50.

2023 2022

51. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at the year-end 309 309

Average number of employees during the year 317 308

52. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO 
PROVIDENT FUND

The following normal production capacity has been worked-out on the basis of daily triple

shift basis:

---------- Cubic Meter ----------

The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and
eligible employees. The following information is based on the audited financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022.

Under-utilisation of available capacity is due to unavoidable / abnormal shutdowns and
repair and maintenance of plant & machinery.

(Number)

Disclosure Requirements for All Shares Islamic Index

Sharia arrang-

ements

Non - Sharia 
arrangements

Sharia arrang-
ements

Loans and advances obtained 

  as per Islamic mode

Long term financing 0        1,677,926 0        1,298,836 

Short term borrowings 0        1,127,439 0        1,364,564 

Bank balances - current and deposits 0 524,781          0 854,801          

Profit earned from bank deposits 0 153,064          0 9,362              

Revenue earned 0 4,332,196       0 4,214,089       

Profit paid 0 364,173          0 221,794          

-------------------------- Rupees in thousand----------------------------

The Company has banking relationship with Islamic windows of conventional banking system as well as Shariah

compliant banks only.

Following information has been disclosed as required under Paragraph 10 of Part I of the 4th Schedule to the

Companies Act, 2017 relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.

2023 2022

Carried under Carried under

Non - Sharia 

arrangements
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2023 2022

(i) Size of the Fund - total assets 72,411              155,708            

(ii) Cost of investments made 52.1                15,521                77,718 

(iii) Percentage of investments made 21.43% 49.91%

(iv) Fair value of investments                15,521                77,718 

52.1 Cost of investments is as follows:

               15,521                77,718 

53. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

54. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

  debt securities and money markets

These financial statements were authorised for issue on by the board
of directors of the Company.

Rupees in thousand

Investments in listed equity collective 
  investment   schemes / mutual   funds /

Corresponding figures have been extracted from the audited financial statements of the
Company and G 3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) for the year ended June 30, 2022 and
reviewed financial statements of GTECH for the six months period ended December 31,
2021.

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Atique Ahmad Khan

(Director)
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of

being a member of  GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

hereby appoint

failing him

of

Sign by the said Member

Signed this day of October 2023.

Afx

Revenue

Stamp of

Rs.5/

Signed in the presence of:

Informa�on required

Number of shares held

Folio No. 

For Member

For Proxy For alternate

Proxy (*)

(Shareholder)
(If member)

CDC 

Account

No.

Par�cipant

I.D.

Account No.

Signature:

Name:

Address:

1.

CNIC/Passport No.

Signature:

Name:

Address:

2.

CNIC/Passport No.

(*)  Upon  failing of appointed Proxy.

I/We

as my / our Proxy to attend act and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at  Annual General Meeting of the members of the 
Company to be held at Lahore on Saturday, October 28, 2023 at 11:30 AM and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
th8  Annual General Meeting
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